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CHAPTER-1

Notice of Annual General Meeting

CIN : U74140MP1979G01001502
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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 45""Annual General Meeting of the members of the MPCON Limited
will be held on Friday, the 27"day of September, 2024 at 11:30 AM through Video Conferencing (“VC”)
/ other Audio Visual Means ("OAVM”) for which purposes the Registered Office of the Company situated
at Ground Floor, 35, Rajeev Gandhi Bhawan No. 2, Shyamla Hills, Bhopal Madhya Pradesh - 462002,
to transact the following business —

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of MPCON Limited including
the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit & Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement for
the year ended 315t March 2024 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors
thereon.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or withoutmodifications, the following resolution, as
an OrdinaryResolution:

“"RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements of the Company as at 31% March, 2024
together with the Reports of the Directors and the Auditors thereon along with all annexures as
laid before this Annual General Meeting be and are hereby received, considered and adopted by
the members of the Company.”

2. To fix and approve the remuneration of the Statutory Auditors of MPCON Limited for
the Financial Year 2024-25.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the following resolution, as
an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in terms of provisions contained under Section 139(5) and Section 142 of
the Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules 2014 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and all other
applicable provisions, if any, of the said Act, the Board of Directors of MPCON Limited be and is
hereby authorized to decide and fix the remuneration of the Statutory Auditor(s) of the company,
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appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India (CAG) for the Financial Year 2024-25
as may be deemed fit.”

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Arun Kumar Goyal (DIN: 01061882), who retires
byrotation atthis Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the following resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of the Section 152 and other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 Mr. Arun Kumar Goyal (DIN: 01061882)who retires by rotation at
this Annual General Meeting and being eligible has offered himself for re- appointment, be and is
hereby re appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

By order of the Board of Directors
For MPCON Limited

(ASHUTOSH SINGLA)
Managing Director
DIN: 08255206
Place: Bhopal
Date: 03.09.2024

NOTES:

1. Annual General Meeting ("AGM") through video conferencing (*VC”) or any other
audio-visual means ("OAVM"):

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’), vide its General Circular No. 20/2020, 14/2020,
17/2020, 02/2021, 02/2022, 09/2023 allowed the Companies to conduct the AGM through Video
Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) without the physical presence of the
Members at a common venue. In accordance with, the said circulars of MCA and applicable
provisions of the Act, the 45"AGM of the Company shall be conducted through VC / OAVM. The
deemed venue for the AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company. Participation of
members through VC / OAVM will be reckoned for the purpose of quorum for the AGM as per
Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC / OAVM, physical
attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of
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proxies by the Members will not be available for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form, Attendance
Slip and Route Map are not annexed to this Notice.

. Explanatory statement setting out the material facts concerning each item of Special Business
to be transacted at the General Meeting pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 is
annexed hereto and forms part of the Notice.

. In view of the MCA Circulars, no proxy shall be appointed by the members. However, corporate
members are required to send to the Company, a certified copy of the Board Resolution/Letter,
pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act 2013, authorizing their representative to attend
and vote at the Meeting through VC to Company’s mail-id i.e. mpcon.bpl@mpconsultancy.org
at least three days in advance of the meeting so that the necessary arrangements can be made
for attending the meeting.

. In terms of the aforesaid Circulars, the businesses set out in the Notice will be transacted by
the members through voting through E-mail which shall be sent by the designated e- mail id of
the Company to the members, the voting system provided during the meeting while
participating through VC facility.

. All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice as well as the other documents as
required under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 are open for inspection at the
Registered Office of the Company on all working days except Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays
between 11:00 A.M. to 1:30 P.M. up to the date of this Annual General Meeting.

. Members seeking any information with regard to accounts or operations are requested to write
to the Company at an early date, preferably at least seven days before the date of Meeting, to
enable the management to keep the information ready.

. In accordance with the aforementioned MCA Circulars, the Company has conducting the
meeting through video conferencing. The members are requested to follow the following

instructions in order to participate in the Meeting through VC mechanism:

a) The login-id and password for joining the meeting will be separately provided to members
on the date of AGM on their registered email id.

b) The facility for joining the Meeting shall be kept open 15 minutes before the time scheduled
to start the meeting i.e. 00:00am and 15 minutes after the expiry of the said scheduled time
i.e. till 00:00 pm;

c) Participation of single member shall only be allowed at a time;
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d) Queries on the accounts and operations of the Company or the businesses covered under
the Notice may be sent to Company’s mail-id i.e. mpcon.bpl@mpconsultancy.org at least
seven days in advance of the meeting so that the answers may be made readily available
at the meeting;

e) Members are requested to e-mail at mpcon.bpl@mpconsultancy.org or call at 0755-2939555 in

case of any technical assistance required at the time of log in/ assessing/ voting at the Meeting
through VC;
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Chapter -2

Directors Report to Shareholders
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS TO THE SHAREHOLDERS FOR THE FINANCIAL
YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2024

Your directors are pleased to summit their 45" Annual Report on the operations of your company
(MPCON) along with Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended on 31t March 2024.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The Financial Performance of the Company during the Twelve Months period ended on 31 March 2024
is summarized hereunder: -

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-24

(Amount in Lakhs)

Operating Years FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23
Revenue from Operations 23659.19 17883.45
Other Income 47.49 76.21
Total Revenue 23706.69 17959.65
Operating Expenses 22860.59 17355.23
Profit before interest and tax & exceptional 846.10 604.42
items
Exceptional Items - (3.20)
Payment of interest 0.00 0.00
Profit before extra-ordinary items 846.10 601.22
Extraordinary Items - -
Profit before tax 846.10 601.22
Tax Expense
Current tax 258.47 156.32
Deferred Tax 1.95 3.46
Profit After tax 589.58 441.45
Other Comprehensive Income (4.50) 9.36
Total Comprehensive Income for the 585.08 450.81
ear
¥ota| Numbers of outstanding Equity Shares 10000 10000
of INRs. 1000/- each
Earnings per share (Rs.) 5851.00 4508.00
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BALANCE SHEET FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-24

(Amount in Lakhs)

Operating Years FY 2023-2024 FY 2022-2023
Non-current assets 1403.14 887.29
Current Assets 1603.27 1183.24
Total Assets 3006.41 2070.53
Represented by:

Equity Share Capital (A) 100.00 100.00
Other Equity (B) 1448.37 1002.41
Net worth (A+B) 1548.37 1102.41
Deferred tax Liabilities (Net) = 0.78
Long term provisions 0 0
Non-Current Liabilities 555.24 553.87
Current Liabilities 902.80 413.47
Total Equity and Liabilities 3006.41 2070.53

A perusal of the aforesaid statistics reveals that during FY 2023-24 under report, the Company
registered the revenue from operations of INRs.23659.19 lakhs as compared to the revenue of INRs.
17883.45 lakhs for the previous Financial Year, reflecting an increase of INRs. 5775.74 lakhs i.e.
32.30%. The Profit before tax for the Financial Year ended on 31 March 2024 is INRs. 846.10 lakhs
as against Profit before Tax of INRs. 601.22 lakhs for the Financial Year ended on 31 March 2023.

For the Financial Year ended on 315t March, 2024, the Company has registered Net profit after tax of
INRs. 589.58 lakhs as compared to Net profit after tax of INRs. 441.45 lakhs for the Financial Year
ended on 31% March 2023, reflecting an increase of INRs. 148.13 lakhs i.e. 33.56%.

The Earning per Share has increased from INRs. 4508.00 to INRs. 5851.00 due to robust financial
performance of the Company during the Financial Year 2023-24.

STATE OF COMPANY'’S AFFAIRS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK

During the year under review, MPCON completed various assignments in the following fields:

1) Project Consultancy & Allied Services (Techno Economic Viability (TEV) Reports, Lenders
Independent Engineer (LIE) Reports, Project reports, Feasibility Studies, Market Surveys/ Socio
Economic Surveys, etc.)

2) Technical Consultancy: This include IT/ITES activities like Digital Evaluation, Secure

Marksheet Creation, University Management System, Software /App Development, Renewable
Energy and Carbon Credits, etc.
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3) Skill Development Programs & Trainings (Central & State Government
Undertakings) - Trainings & Capacity Building, Entrepreneurship, Technology based
Programmes, Faculty Development Programmes, Skill Development Programmes, Exposure
Visits, etc.

4) Manpower Outsourcing
5) Financial Inclusion

MPCON registered again robust growth rate in the year 2023-24 by capitalizing on its core competencies
viz. Project Consultancy, Technical Consultancy, Livelihood enhancement and skilling activities,
Manpower Outsourcing and related activities.

During the year, in the field of project consultancy, which consists of various categories of assignments
viz. Techno Economic Viability Reports, Lenders Independent Engineer's Reports, Detailed Project
Reports, Surveys and Studies, etc. MPCON made a significant contribution in various new projects.
MPCON is empaneled with various public sector Banks for providing project consultancy services like
TEVs, LIE, Valuations etc. In Chhattisgarh, MPCON's State Office, CITCON had worked closely with
various Corporations of Chhattisgarh State in preparing various DPRs and Project Reports.

Training and capacity building in the field of Livelihood Trainings has been one of the main activities of
MPCON since its inception. MPCON has undertaken such trainings in Madhya Pradesh, Chhattisgarh,
Uttar Pradesh, Rajasthan &Maharashtra during the year under review, under the sponsorship of
National Safai Karamacharis Finance & Development Corporation (NSKFDC), National Backward Class
Finance and Development Corporation (NBCFDC), National Scheduled caste Finance and Development
Corporation (NSFDC) under PM Daksh Scheme by Ministry of Social Justice and Empowerment, Govt.
of India, MAPCET, Science and Technology (S&T),M.P. Forest Dept., NABARD and other esteemed
sponsoring organizations.

Technical Consultancy Services: During the year MPCON, continued to work in the University
Management System for the Chhattisgarh Swami Vivekananda Technical University, Bhilai. Further,
MPCON continued with digital evaluation work with M.P. Open School Education Board. MPCON also
added the M.P. Board of Secondary Education for its services in Digital Evaluation and Generation of
Secure Marksheets. MPCON also catered to the cyber security & awareness requirements of the Govt.
Departments and has conducted Cyber Awareness programmes for various M.P. Govt.
Departments/Directorates. It has also successfully provided consultancy to Govt. organizations for
Carbon Trading in the International Market.

Financial Inclusion: In the financial inclusion segment, MPCON provided Business Correspondent
services to Bank of India and to Madhyanchal Gramin Bank (A Regional Rural Bank Controlled by SBI
& Govt. of M.P).

Manpower Consultancy: MPCON has been providing manpower outsourcing to various Govt.
Departments.
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VISION

The future strategy of MPCON is to build on its existing strengths in the areas of Technical and Project
Consultancy, Renewable Energy, Skill Development programs/ Livelihood trainings by expanding its
services to more Government and private sector organizations.

DIVIDEND

During the year the Company has declared Interim Dividend @ 100% of the Equity Share Capital
amounting to INRs. 100.00 Lakhs to the Equity Shareholders of the Company for the Financial Year
2023-24 in the meeting of the Board of Directors of the Company held on 04" November 2023.
PUBLIC DEPOSIT

Your Company did not raise any public deposit during the year. There was no public deposit outstanding
as at the beginning or end of the year as on March 31, 2024.

CHANGES IN COMPOSITION OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

There have been the following changes in the Directors of the Company during the financial year ended
31t March, 2024 and after till the date of this report:

A. Changes by Appointment

1. Shri Kundan Jyoti, General Manager Network-1, State Bank of India was appointed as the
Nominee Director of the Company w.e.f.15" September, 2023.

2. Shri Pramod Kumar DwibediField General Manger (FGMO Bhopal), Bank of India was appointed
as the Nominee Director of the Company w.e.f from 04" April, 2024.

B. Changes by Resignations/transfers etc.

1. Shri. Shailendra Singh Taragi, Ex-General Manager Network-1, State Bank of Indiaceased to
hold the office of Nominee Director of the Company due to the nomination withdrawn by the
State Bank of India w.e.f. 08" August,2023.

2. Shri Lokesh Krishna, Bank of India ceased to hold the office of the Nominee Director of the

Company due to his nomination withdrawn by the Bank of India with effect from 04™ April,
2024.
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PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

During the period under report, the company did not have any person on its rolls whose particulars are
required to be reported under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5 (1) of the
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and therefore your company
has nothing to report under the aforesaid provisions of the Act.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

In term of Section 134(3)(a), read with Rule 12 of the Companies Management & Administration Rules,
2014, extract of the Annual Return of the Company made out in Form No. MGT-9 is attached to this
report as Annexure-1I.

DETAILS OF BOARD MEETINGS
In term of Section 134(b) of the Companies Act, 2013, against the minimum requirement of four

meetings, your board met five times during the 12 Months period ended 31 day of March, 2024 the
details of the meetings along with the attendance are given below-

Quarter ended Date of Meeting Strength of Board |No. of Directors Present
April - June 2023 11.05.2023 9 5
July - Sept 2023 08.08.2023 9 6
Oct - Dec 2023 04.11.2023 9 5
Jan - March 2024 06.02.2024 9 7
Name of the Directors Date of Date of Board Meetings
Appointm | cessation 11th os8th 04t o6t
ent May, Aug., Nov, Feb.,
2023 2023 | 2023 2024
Shri Arun Kumar Goyal 06.09.2021 ---- v v 9 v
(DIN: 01061882)
Shri Ashutosh Singla 05.05.2022 ---- % v % v
(DIN: 06646775)
Shri Tarsem Singh 15.06.2022 ----
X v X X
(DIN: 09627697)
Shri Anil Kumar Thagle 19.09.2022 ----
X X X v
(DIN: 09737969)
Shri Shailendra Singh 19.09.2022 | 08.08.202 9 _ _
Taragi (DIN: 09724124) 3 h
Shri Shailendra Singh Bora | 19.09.2022 ----
X X v X
(DIN: 09737958)
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Shri Prasoon 30.09.2022 ---- % v v L,
(DIN: 03599426)

Shri Ravi Ranjan Mishra 13.10.2022 - v v v

(DIN: 07147779)

Shri Kundan Jyoti 15.09.2023 -- X X

(DIN: 10321190)

Shri Lokesh Krishna 30.09.2021 | 04.04.202 v v v v
(DIN: 09342632) 4

Your directors are pleased to report further that in the matter of Board Meetings your company sought to
comply with the Secretarial Standard on Board Meeting prescribed by the Institute of Company Secretaries
of India and circulated agenda and notes of meetings to Directors well in advance and in defined agenda
format incorporating all material information therein thereby facilitating meaningful and focused
discussions at the meetings. Where it is not been practicable to attach any document to the agenda, it is
tabled at the meeting itself. In special and exceptional circumstances, additional or supplementary item(s)
on the agenda are tabled with the permission of the Chair.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any subsidiary and associate companies and therefore it has nothing to report
in respect thereof.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act 2013, your directors confirm
that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2024 the applicable
accounting standards read with requirements set out under Schedule III to the Act, have been
followed and there are no material departures from the same;

b) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 31%t March, 2024 and of the profit /loss of the Company for
that period;

c) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a “going concern” basis;
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e) they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such internal
financial controls are adequate and operating effectively;

f) The directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

MPCON POLICY ON DIRECTORS, KMPs AND OTHER EMPLOYEES

In term of net worth, turnover, volume of borrowings etc. the size of the company is very small and
that, therefore, during the period under report it is beyond the bracket of specified companies that
attract the provisions contained under Section 134(3) (e) read with Section 178(3) of the Companies
Act, 2013 and that therefore it has not formulated any policy respecting appointment, remunerations
of KMPs and fixing criteria for determining their qualifications, attributes and independence.

AUDITORS REPORT

Being a subsidiary of IFCI Ltd. a Government Company within the meaning of Section 2(45) of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Comptroller & Auditor General appointed M/s DEEPAK GOYAL &
ASSOCIATES, a firm of Chartered Accountants having Firm Registration No. 006749C, operating from
their Office situated at F-02, Sachi Complex Shivaji Nagar, Opp Board Office, Bhopal 462016 Madhya
Pradesh - India, as the Statutory Auditors of MPCON to carry out the audit of the Company for the
Financial Year 2023-24.

The report dated 26.04.2024 & revised report dated 14.08.2024 submitted by the firm does not contain
any qualification, reservations, or adverse remarks and therefore no comments or clarifications is
required on the part of your directors.

Accordingly, in terms of the Section 139 and 142 of the Companies Act, 2013 a proposal for payment
of remuneration to the Auditors for the audit function discharged by is being brought up as one of the
business to be transacted at the ensuing 45"AGM of the Company.

COMMENTS / OBSERVATIONS OF CAG ON THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTS OF THE COMPANY FOR
FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-24

The Company has received the provisional comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India
in terms of Section 143(6)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013 on the Annual Accounts approved and signed
by the Board of Directors and Statutory Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24in the
supplementary audit of the financial statements of MPCON Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
under Section 143(6)(a) of the Act and CAG comments and Management’s response is annexed with
this report in ANNEXURE-II.

DETAILS REGARDING FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SECTION 143(12)
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During the year under review, there were no frauds reported by the auditors to the Board under section
143(12) of the Act.

DETAILS OF MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION

During the year under review and the date of report, there is no material change and commitments
made which affect the financial position of the Company.

MATERIAL ORDER PASSED AND INSTRUCTION FROM COURTS, TRIBUNAL THAT CAN
AFFECT EXISTENCE OF THE COMPANY

During the period under report no orders were passed and no instructions were given by any court,
tribunal, regulators that could impact the going concern status of your Company. The financial
statements of the Company for the year under report have been compiled based on going concern
concept.

STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL WITH
REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Your Company believes that freedom of management should be exercised within a framework of
appropriate checks and balances and therefore it remains committed to ensuring effective internal
controls that, among others, provide an assurance on orderly and efficient conduct of operations,
security of assets, prevention and detection of frauds, errors, accuracy and completeness of accounting
records and facilitates accurate, reliable and timely preparation of requisite financial statements.

With a view to strengthening the existing mechanism for corporate governance and ensuring greater
transparency in the Indian Corporate, the Companies Act, 2013 has re-emphasized the importance of
a robust internal controls environment by introducing the concept of an Internal Financial Controls
(IFC).

The Internal Audit System of your company consists of professionally qualified accountants, MBAs and
IT Specialists competent to deliver internal audit assurances that commensurate to its size, business
mix and business volume of turnover. In the context of the business environment, the system and
policies relating to management of Information are periodically reviewed to ensure that the same are
effective and purpose oriented at all the time.

18|Page



X MPCYUN
45™Annual Report2023-24" MPCHN

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS REPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, M/s Piyush Bindal & Associates, Company
Secretaries, CP No. 7442, Bhopal has been appointed to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company
for the Financial Year 2023-24.

The Secretarial Audit Report which is required to be annexed with the Directors Report in terms of Sub-
Section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 is Annexed in Annexure-III.

POLICLIES FRAMED IN THE COMPANY
The Existing Policies of the Company as framed in the previous years are enlisted below-

= Uniform Delegation of Powers approved in the 170" Board Meeting of the Company held on
23 April, 2016.

= Uniform Document Retention Policy approved in the 170" Board Meeting of the Company held
on 23" April, 2016.

= Uniform Policy on Pay Scale & Allowances, Perquisites/facilities and other staff related matters.

= Policy for Purchase of Goods and Procurement & Execution of Business Services.

= Uniform Promotion Policy of MPCON.

» Policy on Risk Management.

= Policy for prevention, prohibition and redressal of Sexual Harassment of women at workplace.
RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has duly framed and adopted the Risk Management Policy in the Financial Year 2015-16
and the implementation and compliance during the year has been made as per the requirement of the
Risk Management Policy of the Company. As of now, the company has not identified any element of
risk which may threaten the existence of the Company.

DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has framed the Policy for Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment of
women at workplace based on the CCS (Conduct) Rules, 1964 Guidelines regarding prevention of
working women in the work place. MPCON has constituted committees under these guidelines. During
the period no cases were filed under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 in respect of the Company.

DETAILS OF ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM FOR DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES

As per directives of IFCI, the Chief Vigilance Officer of IFCI has been appointed as Chief Vigilance
Officer in MPCON.
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The Company follows the IFCI’s Mechanism Policy for directors and employees to report their concerns
or grievances. No such cases have been reported during FY 2022-23

PARTICULARS OF LOAN, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

During the period under report, no loans were advanced, guarantee given and investments made that
attract the provisions contained under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and that, therefore, the
company has nothing to disclose under the aforesaid provision of the Act.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The company did not enter into any material contract details of which needs to be disclosed under the
report. The transaction which the company has with its parent company/shareholdings institutions in
the ordinary course of its business are disclosed under Annexure IV to this report.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Information regarding loans, guarantees and investments covered under the provisions of Section 186
of the Act, are detailed in the financial statements.

CHANGES IN RESERVES

There were no changes in general reserves for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

TRANSFER TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

During the period under review, there is no amount unpaid/unclaimed dividend which is required to
transfer in IEPF (Investor Education and Protection Fund) as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013.

SHARE CAPITAL

a. Issue of Equity Share and Equity Shares with differential rights

During the period under review, your Company has not issued Equity Shares and Equity Shares with
differential rights.

b. Issue of Sweat Equity Shares

As per rule 8 (13) of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, during the period under

review, your Company has not issued Sweat equity shares.

c. Issue of employee stock options
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As per rule 12 (9) of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, during the period under
review, your Company has not issued equity shares under the scheme of employee stock option.

d. Issue of Bonus Share
During the period under the review, your company has not issued Bonus Shares.

e. Provision of money by Company for purchase of its own shares by employees or by
trustees for the benefit of employees

As per rule 16 (4) of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 there are no voting rights
exercised directly or indirectly by the employees in respect of shares held by them.

CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS INITIATED UNDER THE INSOLVENCY
AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (IBC)

There was no application made during the year and there were no proceeding pending under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) at the end of the financial year.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

As per the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, and other applicable rules and
provisions, if any, the requirement to constitute Audit committee has become applicable to the
Company during the Financial Year 2023-24 and the Company is looking to appoint the Independent
Directors on the Board as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, post appointment
of whom, the Audit Committee would be constituted.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

As per the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, and other applicable rules and
provisions, if any, the requirement to constitute Nomination & Remuneration Committee has become
applicable to the Company during the Financial Year 2023-24 and the Company is looking to appoint
the Independent Directors on the Board as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
post appointment of whom, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee would be constituted.

INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS, 2015

The annexed financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Act, Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and
other relevant provisions of the Act.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS OF ICSI
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The Company has complied with the requirements prescribed under the Secretarial Standards on
Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS5—1) and General Meetings (SS-2) read with the MCA Circulars
granting exemptions.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY, ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The details of Energy, Technology, Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo are as under-
a) Conservation of Energy

Your company is a Service company engaged mainly in providing consultancy services and it
requires electrical energy only for the purpose of lighting its office premises and running its office
equipment which it has installed. Such office equipments and electric fixtures do not consume
much energy. Therefore, it has nothing to report under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act,
2013.

b) Technology Absorption
The Company continues to use the latest technologies for improving the quality of its services, its
operations do not require import of any technology. Hence, it has nothing to report in the matter
of absorption of technology.

c) Foreign Exchange Earnings/ Outgo
During the period under report, your company did not earn any foreign exchange, however foreign

exchange outgo has been incurred by the company towards registration fees details of earnings
and outgo of foreign exchange are given below: -

INR USD /EURO

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING | NIL NIL

FOREIGN EXCHANGE OUTGO | 1. 2,30,000.00 1. 2500 EURO
2. 42,080.00 2. 500 USD

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, your Company is not required to constitute CSR Committee
as the total obligation for CSR amount to be spent is less than INRs. 50.00 lakhs.

As per Rule 9 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the CSR Policy is
required to be adopted by the Board and the same is pending for approval from the Holding Company
“IFCI Limited”. The brief outline of the draft policy is disclosed in the CSR Report.
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Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility as per Rule 8 of Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is prepared and the draft of the same is annexed to the Board’s
Report as Annexure-V.

The details of amount budgeted, spent and unspent are included in the said draft report and the same
is annexed to the Board’s Report as Annexure-VI.

COMPLIANCE OF OTHER PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Certain provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules formulated therein and be enforced under
them, dealing inter-alia, with the following aspects which are either not applicable to the Company or
Company has nothing reportable in respect thereof:

e Particulars of Subsidiaries and Associate Companies.

e Disclosure of receipt of any commission by Managing Director/Whole Time Director from
company and also receiving remuneration from its subsidiary/ holding company in term of
Section 197(14) of the Act.

e Provisions dealing with purchase of its own shares by a Company.

e Provisions governing Issue of Sweat Equity and Employees Stock Options Scheme, issue of
shares with differential voting rights etc. regulated by the Act under Companies.

e (Share Capital & Debentures) Rules, 2014.

e Provisions relating to maintenance of Cost records as specified by the Central Government under
Sub section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

e Directors’ remuneration policy and criteria for matters under Section 178.

e The details of application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the year along with their status as at the end of the financial
year.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

The Board of Directors of your Company wish to express gratitude for the guidance, support and co-
operation received by the MPCON from various Departments of the Government of India and
Government of Madhya Pradesh, Government of Chhattisgarh and other State Governments, IFCI Ltd.
and other shareholders, State level Financial Corporations/Institutions, and Nationalized/Commercial
Banks, Public Sector Undertakings, etc.
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Place: Bhopal For and on behalf of the Board
Date: 03.09.2024 MPCON Limited
Ashutosh Singla Prasoon

(DIN: 06646775) (DIN: 03599426)

Managing Director Director & Chairman
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FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the year ended on 31.03.2023

TRl TAtae s
8 MPCYN

LIMITED

Annexure-I

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company

(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

L.

REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

CIN

U74140MP1979G0I1001502

Registration Date

23.03.1979

Name of the Company

MPCON Limited

RWNE

Category/Sub-category of the

Company

Public Company

5. | Address of the Registered office &
contact details

Ground Floor, 35, Rajeev Gandhi
Shyamla Hills, Bhopal -462002 (M.P.)

Bhawan-2,

6. | Whether listed company

No

7. | Name, Address & contact details of
the Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any.

NA

II PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
(All the business activities contributing approx. 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company

shall be stated)

S. No. | Name and Description of main products / NIC Code of the % to total
services Product/service | turnover of the
company
1 Providing Technical , Management And 702 12.30
Consultancy Services
2 Training Activities 749 4.28
3 Manpower Outsourcing 782 83.41
III PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SIBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
S.No. | Name of the | CIN/GLN No. Holding % of shares Applicable
Company /Subsidiary | held by the Section
[/Associate | company
1 IFCI Limited L74899DL1993G0I1053677 Holding 79.72% 2 (46) of the
Companies Act,
2013
IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN
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THUER A feaes
8 MPCYN

LIMITED

(Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i) Category-Wise Share Holding
Category of No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the end %
Shareholders beginning of the year [As on of the year [As on 31-March- | Change
01-April-2023] 2024] during
the year
De | Physic | Total % of De | Physic | Total % of
mat al Total | ma al Total
Shares t Share
S
A. Promoter s
(1) Indian
a) Individual/ HUF -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --
b) Central Govt -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --
) State Govt(s) -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --
d) Bodies Corp. -- 8672 8672 86.72 -- 8672 8672 86.72 -
e) Banks / FI -- 1328 1328 13.28 -- 1328 1328 13.28 --
f) Any other -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --
Total -- 110000 | 10000 100 -- | 10000 | 10000 100 --
shareholding of
Promoter (A)
B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks / FI

¢) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture Capital
Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

g) FIIs

h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

i) Others

Sub-total (B)(1):-
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2. Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders holding
nominal share
capital uptoRs. 1
lakh

i) Individual
shareholders holding
nominal share
capital in excess of
Rs 1 lakh

c) Others

Non Resident
Indians

Overseas Corporate
Bodies

Foreign Nationals

Clearing Members

Trusts

Foreign Bodies

Sub-total (B)(2):-

Total Public
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+
(B)(2)

C. Shares held by
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total
(A+B+C)

10000

10000

100

10000 | 10000

100 --
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SNO. Shareholders Name Shareholding at the end
of the year
No. of shares | % of total shares of
the company

1. IFCI LTD 7972 79.72
2. AMREX MARKETING PRIVATE LIMITED 220 2.20
3. ICICI BANK LTD 180 1.80
4. MP STATE INDL.DEVE CORPORATION LTD 60 0.60
5. MP LAGHU UDYOG LTD 420 4.20
6. MP FINANCIAL CORPORATION LTD 60 0.60
7. STATE BANK OF INDIA 320 3.20
8. CENTRAL BANK OF INDIA 160 1.60
9. PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK 160 1.60
10. INDIAN BANK 160 1.60
11. UNION BANK OF INDIA 32 0.32
12. BANK OF BARODA 64 0.64
13. UCO BANK 32 0.32
14. BANK OF INDIA 160 1.60

TOTAL 10000 100

(iii) Change in Promoters Shareholding

SNO. Shareholders Name Shareholding at the Shareholding at the end
beginning of the year of the year
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares shares of shares | shares of the
the company company
1. IFCI LTD 7972 79.72 7972 79.72
7. AMREX MARKETING PRIVATE 220 2.20 220 2.20
LIMITED
ICICI BANK LTD 180 1.80 180 1.80
4. MP STATE INDL.DEVE 60 0.60 60 0.60
CORPORATION LTD
MP LAGHU UDYOG LTD 420 4.20 420 4.20
6. MP FINANCIAL CORPORATION 60 0.60 60 0.60
LTD
7. STATE BANK OF INDIA 320 3.20 320 3.20
8. CENTRAL BANK OF INDIA 160 1.60 160 1.60
9. PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK 160 1.60 160 1.60
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LIMITED
10. INDIAN BANK 160 1.60 160 1.60
11. UNION BANK OF INDIA 32 0.32 32 0.32
12. BANK OF BARODA 64 0.64 64 0.64
13. UCO BANK 32 0.32 32 0.32
14. BANK OF INDIA 160 1.60 160 1.60
TOTAL 10000 100 10000 100

(iv)Shareholding pattern of top ten shareholders

(Other than Directors, Promoters & Holders of GDRs and ADRs) as on March 31, 2024 - Not Applicable

(v)Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

S.N Shareholding of each Directors and Shareholding at the Cumulative
0. each Key Managerial Personnel beginning Shareholding during
of the year the year
No. of % of total No. of | %o of total
shares | shares of the | share | shares of the
company S company
1 | At the beginning of the year -- -- -- --
2 | Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters -- - - --
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity
etc.):
3 | At the end of the year -- -- -- --

V INDEBTEDNESS - Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due

for payment.

Secured Loans
excluding
deposits

Unsecured Loans

Deposits

Total Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the

beginning of the financial
year

i) Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not
paid

i) Interest accrued but
not due

Total (i+ii+iil)

Change in Indebtedness
during the financial year

* Addition
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* Reduction

Net Change

Indebtedness at the end
of the financial year

i) Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not
paid \

iii) Interest accrued but
not due

Total (i+ii+iil)

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

As per Notification dated June 5, 2015, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government
Companies are exempt from complying with the provisions of section 197 of the Companies Act,
2013, read with Rules made thereunder. Accordingly, your Company being a Government Company
is exempt from disclosing the information required under the said section read with Rules made
thereunder in the Board's Report.

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of Brief Details of Authority Appeal
the Description | Penalty / [RD / made
Companies Punishment/ NCLT/

ct Compounding COURT]
fees imposed

A. COMPANY
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

B. DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
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Place: Bhopal For and on behalf of the Board
Date: 03.09.2024 MPCON Limited
Ashutosh Singla Prasoon

(DIN: 06646775) (DIN: 03599426)

Managing Director Director & Chairman
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Annexure-II

Reply to the Provisional Comments on the Annual Accounts of MPCON Limited for the
Financial Year ended 31t March, 2024

A. Balance Sheet
A.1. Trade receivable (Note No-4)
A.1.1 Provision for Bad/Doubtful Debt - Rs.232.98 lakh

The Company has signed (October 2015) Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with the Odisha Skill
Development Authority (Authority), which was renewed on 3.7.2018, for undertaking Placement Linked
Training for the Youth of the Odisha State. The Company booked an amount of Rs.102.70 lakh as
receivable from the Authority. The Authority released Rs.28.09 lakh and it clearly refused (04.03.2020)
release of further amount to MPCON stating that the MPCON Limited had violated Clause No. 5(c) and
5(f) of the MOU and thus the chance of recovery of the above-mentioned trade receivable is very
remote.

Therefore, the Company should have created a provision for the entire amount of Rs.69.56 lakh as
recommended by the Project Head of MPCON instead of creating provision of Rs. 17.39 lakh (25% of
the total amount due i.e.Rs.69.56 lakh.)

This has resulted in understatement of provision and overstatement of profit by Rs.52.17 lakh.

OBS-1464824
Reply by Management:

We agree with the provisional comment of CAG i.e. only 25% provision for Bad/Doubtful Debt against
the Debtor - Odisha Skill Development Authority, has been made in the Financial ended 315t March
2024, we have noted this short provision and give assurance that we will make 100% provision in the
upcoming financials for the quarter ended 30" September 2024 amounting to Rs 52.17 lakhs.

Statutory Auditor Reply:

We agree with reply of management and we propose to drop the audit para.

A.1.2 Non-Current Liabilities
Trade Payable (Note 22) - Rs.555.24 lakh.

The above includes an amount of Rs.11.69 lakh being penalty imposed by the. The Company booked
this liability in the FY 2009-2010. As the building was no longer with MP Housing Board and no presiding
officer has been appointed by the MP Housing Board, the case does not hold merit, and no financial
liability is expected. Hence, the company should have written back the above-mentioned creditor after
obtaining legal opinion.

Non-writing back of the same has resulted overstatement of Non-Current Liabilities (Trade Payables)
and understatement profit by Rs.11.69 lakh.
OBS-1464634
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Reply by Management:
We agree with the provisional comment of CAG i.e. non- writing back of Rs 11.69 Lakhs of MP Housing
Board towards arrears of rent for the MPCON'’s earlier rented office premises at Bhopal in profit and

loss account of the Financial ended 31t March 2024, we have noted this and give assurance that we
will write back Rs 11.69 lakh in the upcoming financials for the quarter ended 30" September 2024.

Statutory Auditor Reply:
We agree with reply of management and we propose to drop the audit para.

B. Significant Accounting Policies
B.1 Notes forming part of Balance Sheet as on 31st March 2024

Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Gol issued new disclosures requirements under Schedule-III of the
Companies Act, 2013 with effect from 1stApril 2021 with regard to Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) activities where the company is covered under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

However, no disclosure was made in this regard in the Notes forming part of Balance Sheet even
though the Company has spent Rs.6.05 lakh towards CSR for the FY 2023-24

Hence, Notes forming part of Balance Sheet is deficient to that extent.

OBS-1464606
Reply by Management:
We agree with the provisional comment of CAG i.e. non-disclosure of CSR in notes to the account of
the Financial ended 31 March 2024, we have noted this and disclose the same in the next financial
year notes to the accounts.
Statutory Auditor Reply:
We agree with reply of management and we propose to drop the audit para.

For MPCON LIMITED

Ashutosh Singla Prasoon
(DIN: 06646775) (DIN: 03599426)
Managing Director Director & Chairman
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Annexure-III
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2024
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

MPCON LIMITED

CIN: U74140MP1979G0I1001502

Ground Floor, 35, Rajeev Gandhi, Bhawan Parisar-2,
Shyamla Hills, Bhopal, MP 462002

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by MPCON LIMITED (hereinafter called the “Company”).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report
that in our opinion, the Company has, during the Financial Year from April 01, 2023 to March 31, 2024.
(‘the year’/ “audit period’/ ‘period under review’) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder
and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by Company for the Financial Year ended on 31 March 2024 according to the provisions
of:

i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA") and the rules made there under;

iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

V) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act’): -

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) regulations, 2015; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period)
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b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period)

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021;
(Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India(Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period)

j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;
(Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

k) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Investor Protection and Education Fund)
Regulations, 2009 (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

Compliances / processes / systems under other specific applicable Laws (as applicable to the
Industry) to the Company are being verified on the basis of periodic Certificates under internal
Compliance system submitted to the Board of Directors of the Company.

have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India; (Complied with)
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015. (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period under
review).

further report that during the year under review the Company has generally complied with the

provisions of the Acts, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards mentioned above.

We

further report that during the Audit period under review:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors and Non-Executive Directors including Nominee Directors as per the composition of
Directors specified under the Articles of Association of the Company. The processes relating to
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the year were carried
out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. The requirement to appoint the Independent
Directors on the Board of the Company has become applicable to the Company as at the end of
the Financial Year 2022-23 as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 but the Company
due to pending finalization of the suitable candidates has not appointed the Independent Directors
on the Board as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 till the end of the
Financial Year.
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— Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent generally seven days in advance other than those held at shorter
notice, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

— As per the minutes of the Meetings duly recorded and signed by the chairman, the decisions of
the Board were unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded.

We further report that, based on the information provided and the representation made by the
Company there seems to be adequate systems and processed in the Company commensurate with the
size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the period there were no other specific events/actions in pursuance
of the above-referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines etc. having a major bearing on the Company
affairs.

Place: Bhopal For Piyush Bindal & Associates
Date: 22.07.2024 “Company Secretaries”

Piyush Bindal

(Proprietor)

FCS — 6749

CP. No. 7442

Peer Review Cert. No.: 922/2020

Firm’s Registration No. S2012MP186400
UDIN: FO06749F000800291

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and
forms integral part of this Report.
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Annexure-A
To,
The Members,
MPCON LIMITED
CIN: U74140MP1979G0I1001502
Ground Floor, 35, Rajeev Gandhi, Bhawan Parisar-2,
Shyamla Hills, Bhopal, MP 462002

Our Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 of even date is to be read
along with this letter.

Management’s Responsibility
1. It is the responsibility of the management of the Company to maintain secretarial records,
devise proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
regulations and to ensure that the systems are adequate and operate effectively.

Auditor’s Responsibility
2. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and
procedures followed by the Company with respect to secretarial compliances.
3. We believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company’s management is
adequate and appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opinion.
4. Wherever required, we have obtained the management’s representation about the compliance
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

Disclaimer

5. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of
the Company.

6. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of
accounts of the Company.

7. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe
that the processes and practices followed provided a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Place: Bhopal For Piyush Bindal & Associates
Date: 22.07.2024 “Company Secretaries”

Piyush Bindal

(Proprietor)

FCS — 6749

CP. No. 7442

Peer Review Cert. No.: 922/2020

Firm’s Registration No. S2012MP186400
UDIN: FO06749F000800291
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Annexure-1V
MPCON LTD
Form AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement showing details of related party transactions during the Twelve Months period ended on 31
March 2024

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis — NIL
2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis

S. Name of the | Nature of Nature of Amount involved (DR/CR)
No. | Related Party | Relation Transaction (Rs. lakhs)
2022-24 2022-23
1. IFCI LTD Holding 1. Bills for project - -
Company Consultancy

2. Amount of Office - -
premises Rent

3. Travelling and - -
other Expenses.

4, Salary - -
Reimbursement
5. Manpower 364.41 159.38

Consultancy

S. Name of the Nature of Nature of Amount involved (DR/CR)
No. | Related Party Relation Transaction 2023-24 2022-23
2. MPCON Related Non- | Advances Repayment 1.49 0.35
Finestar Profit

Organization

Place: Bhopal For and on behalf of the Board
Date: 03.09.2024 MPCON Limited
Ashutosh Singla Prasoon

(DIN: 06646775) (DIN: 03599426)

Managing Director Director & Chairman
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Annexure-V

MPCON LIMITED
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) POLICY

I. CONTEXT

1.1 MPCON’s vision is to be the leading integrated Technical and Management consulting organization
across the entire spectrum of Business & Social sectors and be an influential partner in country’s
economic growth and development. Guided by this, MPCON Ltd. (MPCON) has been instrumental in
social and economic development of the country. Being a socially responsible company, MPCON has
always strived to conduct its business holistically and responsibly.

1.2 Broadly, CSR may be understood to be a process by which an organization thinks about and evolves
its relationships with stakeholders for the common good, and demonstrates its commitment in this
regard by suitable and strategically targeted activities. MPCON believes that socially responsible
companies do not limit themselves to using resources to engage in activities that increase only their
profits, instead, they use CSR to integrate economic, environmental and social objectives with the
company’s operations and growth.

1.3 Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified section 135 and schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013
along with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 with effect from April
01, 2014. The companies on whom the provisions of CSR are applicable are contained in Sub Section
1 of Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013. This CSR Policy of MPCON has been prepared pursuant
to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the notified CSR Rules, 2014 as amended from time to
time. This CSR policy would serve as the referral document for all CSR activities of MPCON.

II. CSR VISION AND OBJECTIVES

2.1 Vision Statement
To foster sustainability, and being a responsible corporate citizen.
2.2. Objectives

The objective of MPCON's CSR Policy is to drive measurable change in the communities we work with
and strive to create a positive impact through our initiatives on education & skill development,
employment & technology incubation, rural development and health & sanitation, etc.

To pursue the above objectives and to carry out the CSR activities/programs, MPCON will either carry
out the CSR activities on its own or entrust its CSR funds (as stated in para III below), to MPCON
FineStar or any other reputed NGOs with excellent track record of minimum 5 years in execution of
CSR Projects.
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III. FINANCIAL RESOURCES

3.1 MPCON with the approval of its Board of Directors, will make a budgetary allocation for CSR and
Sustainability activities / projects every year. The budgetary allocation will be at least two percent of
the average net profits of the company made during the three immediately preceding financial years.

For the purposes of this section “average net profit” shall be calculated in accordance with the
provisions of section 198 of Companies Act, 2013.

For the financial year 2023-24, 2% Net Profit calculations, in accordance with Section 135 of the
Companies Act and the notified CSR Rules 2014 as per the attached CA certificate, are provided below:

(In Rs. Lakhs)

Year Net Profit Average of the three 2 % of Net Profit
(Rs.) years profit Average

2020-21 136.00

2021-22 170.08 302.49 6.05

2022-23 601.41

The surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities shall not form part of the business
profit of MPCON Limited. CSR expenditure shall include all expenditure including contribution to corpus,
for projects or programs relating to CSR activities carried out by MPCON CSR but does not include any
expenditure on an item not in conformity or not in line with activities which fall within the purview of
Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

IV. GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Governance Structure for undertaking MPCON’s CSR activities is as depicted and explained below:

The CSR Committee will monitor the execution of CSR activities approved by the Board of MPCON.
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4.1. ROLE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

In pursuance of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of MPCON shall:

After taking into account the recommendations made by the Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee, approve the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy for MPCON and disclose contentsof
such Policy in its report and also place it on the company's website, if any, in such a manner as may
be prescribed.

Ensure that the activities as are included in Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the MPCON are
undertaken by the Company.

The Board of MPCON shall ensure that the company spends, in every financial year, at least two percent
of the average net profits of the company made during the three immediately precedingfinancial
years, in pursuance of its Corporate Social Responsibility Policy, provided that the company shall give
preference to the local area and the areas around it where it operates, for spending the amount
earmarked for Corporate Social Responsibility activities.

If the company fails to spend such amount, the Board shall, in its report made under clause (o) of sub-
section (3) of section 134 of Companies Act 2013, specify the reasons for not spending the amount.

4.2 ROLE OF THE CSR COMMITTEE

MPCON has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the MPCON consisting of
the following personnel:

Shri Manoj Kumar Mishra — Chairman
Shri Chandra Prakash Hassani

Smt Reshma Khan

Shri Hirdesh Kumar Yadav

Shri Sunil Shrivastava

Shri Gurupreet Singh Minhas

Shri Ajay Rajak

Shri Mahesh Ratnawat

Mr. Vinay Trivedi

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee shall:

a) Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall
indicate the activities to be undertaken by the company as specified in Schedule VII of
Companies Act, 2013;

b) Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred to in clause
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(a) above; and
Monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the company from time to time.

Review the status of the CSR projects/programmes supported by MPCON with quarterly report
to the Board of Directors of MPCON.

The CSR Committee will monitor the funds and its operations.

The CSR Committee will submit quarterly reports regarding the progress in the implementation of
CSR and sustainability activities to the Board of MPCON for their information, consideration and
necessary directions. For effective compliance, execution, supervision and reporting, the CSR
Committee shall wherever necessary, conduct its operations in consultation with various
Departments in MPCON.

V.PLANNING AND STRATEGY

MPCON shall endeavour to integrate its CSR and sustainability plans with the business plans and
strategies.

5.1 CSR ACTIVITY AREAS

The CSR activities shall be undertaken by MPCON, as per its stated CSR Policy, as projects or
programs or activities (either new or ongoing), excluding the activities undertaken in pursuance of
its normal course of business to implement the CSR mandate of MPCON.

MPCON, through CSR initiatives, may also collaborate with other companies for undertaking
projects or programs or CSR activities in such a manner that the CSR committees of respective
companies are in a position to report separately on such projects or programs in accordance with
the notified CSR Rules 2014 and as amended from time to time.

CSR projects or programs or activities undertaken in India only shall amount to CSR Expenditure.
The CSR projects or programs or activities that benefit only the employees of the company and
their families shall not be considered as CSR activities in accordance with Section 135 of the Act.

MPCON may also build CSR capacities of their own personnel as well as those of their implementing
agencies through Institutions with established track records of at least three financial years but
such expenditure shall not exceed five (5%) percent of total CSR expenditure of the company in
one financial year.

Contribution of any amount directly or indirectly to any political party under section 182 of the Act,
shall not be considered as CSR activity.

As per the Schedule VII under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the following activities are
allowed as a part of CSR activities by MPCON Limited:

eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting preventive health care and sanitation
including contribution to Swach Bharat Kosh set-up by the Central Government for the
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promotion of sanitation, making available safe drinking water and environment sustainability;

ii. promoting education, including special education and employment enhancing vocation skills
especially among children, women, elderly, and the differently abled and livelihood
enhancement projects;

ii. Promoting gender equality, empowering women, setting up homes and hostels for women and
orphans; setting up old age homes, day care centers and such other facilities for senior citizens
and measures for reducing inequalities faced by socially and economically backward groups.

iv. Ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance, protection of flora and fauna, animal
welfare, agroforestry, conservation of natural resources and maintaining quality of soil, air and
water.

v. Protection of national heritage, art and culture including restoration of buildings and sites of
historical importance and works of art; setting up public libraries; promotion and development
of traditional arts and handicrafts.

vi. Measures for the benefit of armed forces veterans, war widows and their dependents

vii. Training to promote rural sports, nationally recognized sports, Paralympic sports and Olympic
sports.

viii. Contribution to the Prime Minister's National Relief Fund or any other fund set up by the Central
Government for socio-economic development and relief and welfare of the Scheduled Caste,
the Scheduled Tribes, other backward classes, minorities and women, including PM CARES
fund (Prime Minister’s Citizen Assistance and Relief in Emergency Situations Fund’)

ix. Rural development projects.

X. Contributions or funds provided to technology incubators located within academic institutions
which are approved by the Central Government.

xi. Slum area development.

xii. Contribution to the Swachh Bharat Kosha set up by the Central Government for the promotion
of sanitation and the Clean Ganga Fund set up by the Central Govt for rejuvenating of the
river Ganga

xiii. Disaster management, including relief, rehabilitation and reconstruction activities.

5. 2. MPCON’'S FOCUS AREAS & PRIORITY PROGRAMS, GEOGRAPHIC AREAS AND

IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULE

A. Focus Areas & Priority Programs

Efforts shall be made to take up high impact projects from the budget allocated for CSR and
sustainability activities by creating physical infrastructure/asset for the benefit of society at large,
However, while planning for any long term projects the estimated total cost of each project may be
assessed and funds will be committed till the completion of the project in a phase wise manner as per
milestones achieved. The performance of the CSR activities would be adjudged on the basis of their
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achievement of annual targets and the utilization of their annual budgets for the activities planned and
the targets set for each year.

In the selection or choice of CSR and sustainability projects, MPCON shall avoid taking up ad hoc, one
time, and philanthropic activities. However, contribution to the Prime Minister's National Relief Fund,
Swachhta Kosh or any other fund set up by the Central Government for socio- economic development
and relief and welfare of the Scheduled Castes, the Scheduled Tribes, other backward classes,
minorities and women would be considered a valid CSR activity.

MPCON may refrain from taking up activities which are clearly mandated to be performed by the
Government and / or for which Central / State Government’s schemes have been sanctioned, as it
could result in unnecessary duplication. However, MPCON may supplement the efforts of the
Government in deficit funding for achieving the targets / goals. In case, the earmarked funds for CSR
are not utilized as per the envisaged plans for a particular financial year, CSR Committee, with the
approval of the Board of Directors, can contribute the unutilized funds to the Prime Minister’s
National Relief Fund.

The priority areas for the year 2023-24 may be considered as provided in the table below:
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MPCON Priority program/projects for 2023-24 Schedule
Vision Elemen VII area
FOCUS AREAS

Promoting education among children, employment (ii)
Promote enhancing vocational skills, skill development and livelihood
development enhancementprojects etc.
of Human Contributions or funds to technology incubators located in (ix)
Capital academic institutions which are approved by the Central
Government.
Hunger, Promoting midday meal programs in schools, may set-up )
Malnutrition, | kitchens, meal vending vehicles etc. Support and work on
Health and medical, health-related and sanitation projects etc
Sanitation
Water Projects of rain water harvesting, protecting groundwater (),
Conservation | resources, (iv)
sustainable methods of using groundwater resources,
education outreachfor same, waterless urinals etc
oLD Setting up of old age homes, health care centres etc (iii)
AGE andrelated activities
Setting up of adoption centres, homes for girl child, health care (iii)
Girl Child centres forgirl child, vocational/higher education for girl
child etc and related activities
OTHER THEME AREAS
Promote Rural development projects with focus on renewable energy (%)
Development | projects andrural digital services etc
of rural areas | Ensuring environmental sustainability, —ecological balance, (iv)
& sustainable | protection of flora and fauna, animal welfare, agroforestry,
development | conservation of natural resources and maintaining quality of soil,
Activities air and water, including contribution to the Clean Ganga Fund set-
up by the Central Government for rejuvenation of River Ganga
Promotion Training to promote rural sports, nationally recognized sports, (vii)
of Sports Paralympic sports & Olympic sports
Other Any other areas under Schedule VII of Section 135 of]
Welfare Companies Act, 2013
elements
Capacity As per Companies (CSR Policy) Rules 2014
Building

B. Geographic Areas

Companies Act specifies that company should give preference to the local area in selection of CSR
activities. However, DPE Guidelines, interalia state “CPSE which by the very nature of their
business have no specific geographical area of commercial operations, may take up CSR
activities/projects at any location of their choice in the country. MPCON may preferably take up
CSR activities/Projects in the areas where MPCON is actively working and priority may be given
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to areas where MPCON has a presence by virtue of its offices for better monitoring and
implementation purpose, but not necessarily.

C. Implementation Schedule

The implementation schedule for the identified programs during the FY 2023-24 may be
considered as below:

Sl. No. Implementation Phase
1 Phase I: Putting institutional implementation and monitoring
mechanisms in place
2 Phase II: Identifying project/program implementation partners,

soliciting and evaluating proposals, finalizing budget and requisite
internal approvals

3 Phase III: Execution of all requisite implementation and monitoring
agreements with implementation partners, if any and disbursement of]
funds

4 Phase IV: Commencement of project/program execution as proposed

5.3. MODALITIES OF EXECUTION

A. Initial assessment

Before taking any final decision on the selection of any CSR and sustainability project, a study
may be done to assess the needs of the intended beneficiaries for a realistic assessment of the
resource inputs required for the expected level of social/economic/ environmental impact. The
data and information collected through this study before the commencement of the project may
be used in impact assessment after the completion of the project.

Such a study can include a baseline survey though not mandatory. A need assessment study may
either be conducted through in-house expertise or can be conducted through an independent
agency.

An illustrative list of details to be contained in evaluated projects is as under:

= a project context including the roles of other development factors
= key needs of the target beneficiaries

= project goals

= Key Performance Indicators (KPI's)

= project milestones for progress

= monitoring purposes

= Qactivities and timelines to achieve the stated project goals
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= budgets along with the basis for estimation

= progress reporting: content, frequency

All projects/proposals to be supported / executed under CSR shall be approved by the Board of
Directors of MPCON.

B. Due Diligence of Implementation Agencies

While engaging or partnering with external agencies, care will be exercised in selecting only those
specialized agencies which have the necessary capabilities and expertise to implement the CSR
projects. The credentials of reliability, integrity and professional competence of such agencies will
be verified. Funding to agencies with tax exemption may be preferred.

Implementation agencies, if any, would be approved by the CSR Committee followed by the
approval of Board of MPCON, before disbursement of funds.

Any implementation partners being owned (partially or completely), managed by any MPCON
employee or their immediate family members or any of the Directors, shall not be eligible for any
funds.

VI. MPLEMENTATION AND MONITORING

Activities which are selected under CSR and sustainability agenda, as far as possible, shall be
implemented in a project mode, which entails charting the stages of execution in advance through
planned processes, with mobilization of pre-estimated quantum of resources, and within the
allocated budgets and prescribed timelines. It shall also assign clear responsibility and
accountability of the designated officials / agencies who are entrusted with the task of
implementation. Monitoring shall be done periodically. Monitoring mechanisms will also provide
periodic feedbacks with recourse to mid-course correction in implementation, whenever required.
Actual disbursements shall be linked to the progress on the ground.

A) Evaluation and Impact Assessment

For all the CSR activities of MPCON implemented by MPCON itself, MPCON Finestar or any other
reputed NGOs, the evaluation may be assigned to an independent external agency or may
be undertaken by MPCON directly. The ultimate test of the success of any CSR and sustainability
activity / project is the social, economic or environmental impact thereof. Every CSR activity is
planned and implemented with some anticipated impact on society or environment. It is against
such perception and expectation of impact that the completed activity / project should be
measured to ascertain the degree of its success, or failure. In fact, it is at the time of impact
assessment that a well- documented and detailed baseline survey or need assessment study done
at the commencement of the activity, comes in handy for comparison of data.

Impact assessment can be understood to be associated with accomplishment of set targets and

goals at various stages of progress in implementation. While achievement of targets and expected
outcomes can be a source of satisfaction, MPCON may try to get an assessment done of the
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social/economic/environmental impact of their CSR and sustainability activities after the same are
completed.

VII. REPORTING AND DISCLOSURE

7.1 Annual Reporting

The Board's Report of MPCON Ltd. for every financial year shall include an annual report on CSR
activities.

7.2 Company Website

The Board of Directors of the MPCON shall, after taking into account the recommendations of the
CSR Committee, approve the CSR Policy for the company and disclose contents of such policy in
its report and the same shall be displayed on the company’s website.

Place: Bhopal For and on behalf of the Board
Date: 03.09.2024 MPCON Limited
Ashutosh Singla Prasoon

(DIN: 06646775) (DIN: 03599426)

Managing Director Director & Chairman
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ANNEXURE-VI

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)
ACTIVITIES

For Financial Year ended March 31, 2024
(Pursuant to Rule 8 of Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules,
2014)

Brief outline on draft CSR Policy of the Company:

MPCON Limited (“Company”) is committed to its stakeholder’'s government, investors,
shareholders, associates, community, environment, employees and their families — to conduct its
business in a responsible manner that creates a sustained positive impact. The main objective of
CSR policy to make CSR a key business process for sustainable development of the society and
also to strive for economic development that positively impacts the society at large with a minimal
resource footprint.

The CSR activities covered the following areas or subject as specified in VII of the Act:

1.

Contribution to the Prime Minister's National Relief Fund or Prime Minister’s Citizen Assistance
and Relief in Emergency Situations Fund (PM CARES Fund) or any other fund set up by the
central govt. for socio economic development and relief and welfare of the schedule caste,
tribes, other backward classes, minorities and women.

Contribution to incubators funded by Central Government or State Government or any 30
agency or Public Sector Undertaking of Central Government or State Government, and
contributions to public funded Universities, Indian Institute of Technology (IITs), National
Laboratories and Autonomous Bodies (established under the auspices of Indian Council of
Agricultural Research (ICAR), Indian Council of Medical Research (ICMR), Council of Scientific
and Industrial Research (CSIR), Department of Atomic Energy (DAE), Defence Research and
Development Organization (DRDO), Department of Biotechnology (DBT)], Department of
Science and Technology (DST), Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology) engaged
in conducting research in science, technology, engineering and medicine aimed at promoting
Sustainable Development Goals (SDGS).

Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, “promoting health care including preventive
health care” and sanitation including contribution to the Swach Bharat Kosh set-up by the
Central Government for the promotion of sanitation and making available safe drinking water.
Promoting education, including special education and employment enhancing vocation skills
especially among children, women, elderly and the differently abled and livelihood
enhancement projects.

Promoting gender equality, empowering women, setting up homes and hostels for women
and orphans; setting up old age homes, day care centres and such other facilities for senior
citizens and measures for reducing inequalities faced by socially and economically backward
groups.
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Ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance, protection of flora and fauna,
animal welfare, agroforestry, conservation of natural resources and maintaining quality of
soil, air and water including contribution to the Clean Ganga Fund set-up by the Central
Government for rejuvenation of river Ganga.

Protection of national heritage, art and culture including restoration of buildings and sites of
historical importance and works of art; setting up public libraries; promotion and
development of traditional art and handicrafts.

Measures for the benefit of armed forces veterans, war widows and their dependents, Central
Armed Police Forces (CAPF) and Central Para Military Forces (CPMF) veterans, and their
dependents including widows.

Training to promote rural sports, nationally recognized sports, Paralympic sports and Olympic
sports.

Rural development projects.

Slum area development.

Explanation: - For the purposes of this item, the term “slum area' shall mean any area
declared as such by the Central Government or any State Government or any other
competent authority under any law for the time being in force.

Disaster management, including relief, rehabilitation and reconstruction activities.

To meet this commitment, we implement management systems in our operations that accord
with the requirements of our corporate social responsibility standards and strive to:

>

>
>

2.

Comply with all applicable laws, regulations and other employment standards, wherever we
operate.

Consult with and respond to the concerns of our stakeholders.

Behave with honesty and integrity in all our activities and relationships with others and reject
bribery and corruption in all its forms.

. Average net profits of the company for last three Financial Years:

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22 2020-21
Net Profit as per the| 6,01,22,190.00 1,69,87,826.00 1,35,99,646.00
Financial Statements

Add / Less: Adjustments 18,386.00 19,754.0 0.00
as per Section 198

Adjusted Net Profit as per 6,01,40,576.00 1,70,07,580.00 1,35,99,646.00
Section 198

Average Profit for 3,02,49,267.00
Preceding 3 years
Minimum Amount of CSR 6,04,985.00

Expense to be made (2%
of Average Profit)

Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR
projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company: NA
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3. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance
of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report): Not applicable

4. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of
the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount
required for set off for the financial year, if any - Not applicable
Average Net Profits of the Company as per Section 135(5): INRs. 3,02,49,267.00

5A. Prescribed CSR expenditure (two percent of the amount as above): INRs.

6,04,985.00/-

5B. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the

previous financial years: NIL

5C. Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: NIL

5D. Total CSR obligation for the Financial Year (5A+5B-5C): INRs. 6,04,985.00/ -

6. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Total Amount Unspent (INRs.)
Amount
Spent for the
Financial Total Amount transferred | Amount transferred to any fund specified
Year (INRs.) | to Unspent CSR Account | under Schedule VII as per second proviso
as per Section 135(6) to Section 135(5)
Amount Date of Name of Amount Date of
Transfer the Fund Transfer
6,04,985.00 0.00 NA PM-CARES | 6,04,985.00 | 15.03.2024
FUND

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the Financial Year: The
Company has not spent any amount against Ongoing Projects during Financial Year 2023-
24.

(c) Number of Other than Ongoing Projects for the Financial Year: 1 (One)

7. Details of CSR spent during the Financial Year (01.04.2023-31.03.2024)

a) Total amount to be spent for the Financial Year: INRs.6,04,985.00/ -

b) Amount unspent / (excess) spent for the Financial Year, if any: None

c) Amount eligible for transfer to Unspent CSR Account for the FY as per
Section 135(6)

d) Amount to be transferred to Fund specified in Schedule VII for the Financial
Year (if total unspent for the Financial Year is greater than unspent for Ongoing
projects): None

8. Specify the reason(s) if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average
net profit as per Section 135(5): The Company not having any unspent amount due during
the period

Responsibility Statement of the Board of Directors

In accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, and Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors confirms that the
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implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy is in compliance with the CSR objectives and policy
of the Company

Place: Bhopal For and on behalf of the Board
Date: 30.08.2024 MPCON Limited
Ashutosh Singla Prasoon

(DIN: 06646775) (DIN: 03599426)

Managing Director Director & Chairman
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Chapter 3
Audited Financial Statement for the Financial Year
2023-24
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS ON 3157
MARCH, 2024
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H.O : F-02, Sanchi Complex, Opp. Board Office, Shivaji Nagar, BHOPAL - 462016 Ph.: 0755-2572240, emalil : d_goyal99 @hotmail.com

REVISED INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO,
THE MEMBERS OF MPCON Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

Our Audit Report dated 26™April 2024 on accounts for the year ended 31% March 2024 has been
revised to give effect to the observation made by the Comptroller and Auditor General of Indiain the
supplementary audit carried by them u/s 143(6)(a) of the Companies Act 2013 in regards to Audit
Trail under Rule 11(g),the same is reported herewith in the revised report.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of MPCON Limited, which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at 31" March, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss, for the year that ended, and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Auditor’s Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31*March, 2024, and its Profitfor
the yearended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Indian Account Standards (Ind AS) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of the most significance
in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the
matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

S.No. | Key Audit Matter Ay Auditor’s Response
1. ‘ Tender Policy MY : As per Anlle;(dfe' “en
2. Revenue Recognition As per Annexure “C”
12 MSME As per Annexure “C”
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Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate
Governance and Sharcholder’s Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read such other information as and when made available to us and if we conclude that there

is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance

If. based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to the following Notes to the financial statement, which describes:

a) Note 23 of the financial statement a sum of Rs. 13.13 Lacs is shown under the head other
current liabilities are the amount which is received by the company during the financial year
but the same has been unidentified by the company from whom the amount has been received.

b) Note 39 of the financial statements, which describe the uncertainty, related to the outcome of
the Profit/Loss, suit filed against the company.

¢) Note 16(1) of the financial statement, the sum of Rs 39.12 Lacs related to other current assets
(income tax refundable) of the previous financial year 2022-23 has been directly adjusted
from reserve and surplus.

d) Please refer the Annexure-C

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance (TCWG)

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and compl%n@_;q\, e accounting records, relevant to the
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preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guaranice that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if. individually or in the
agaregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

e Evaluate the appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and. based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
10 the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
{0 cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and signific dit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during,o;i-’}ﬁ
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matiers in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

This report includes a statement “Annexure A” on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of
the Companics (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020, issued by the Central Government of India, in
terms of sub-section 11 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent its is applicable
to the company.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31* March 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as 31" March
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
"Annexure B".

(2) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s report under section 197(16), In our
opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid
down under section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed
other details under section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.




(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

ii.

iil.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements.

The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards. for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts.

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief. other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other
{han as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been reccived by the
company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has caused them to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

The company has declared or paid the interim and final dividend of Rs 100.00 Lacs for
the financial year 2023-24.

(i) Based on our examination which included test checks, the Corporation has used an accounting

software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.




.

As We have conducted our audit in acco
the C&AG of India under Section 143(5) of

rdance with the direction & sub-directions issued by
the Companies Act 2013 and report of our audit

and Compliance Certificate is annexed to our audit report. Also, the answers to the questions

March 2024 are given below:

mentioned in the report under section 143(5) of Companies Act, 2013

for the year ended 317

01.

Whether the company has system in place to
process all the accounting transactions through
IT system? If yes, the implications of processing
of accounting transactions outside IT system on
the integrity of the accounts along with the
financial implications, if any, may be stated.

Yes, the company has system in
place to process all the
accounting transactions through
IT system. The company does
not have any accounting
transaction outside 1T System.

02.

Whether there is any restructuring of an existing
loan or cases of waiver/write off of
debts/loans/interest etc. made by a lender to
the company due to the company’s inability to
repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact may
be stated. Whether such cases are properly
accounted for? (In case, lender is a Government
company, then this direction is also applicable
for statutory auditor of lender company).

No. the company has not taken
any loan of any nature during the
year under audit, hence reply of
this point is not application.

03.

Whether funds (grants/subsidy etc.)
received/receivable for specific schemes from
Central/State Government or its agencies were
properly accounted for/utilized as per its term
and conditions? List the cases of deviation.

Yes, funds received /receivable
for specific schemes from
Central/State Government or it's
agencies were properly
accounted for /utilized as per its
terms and  conditions, No
deviation noticed during the test
check of audit.

For Deepak Goyal and Associates

Partner
M.No. : 075634

UDIN: 24025<3Y4 BKH BCN F9F

Place :Bhopal -
Date ; 14" August 2014
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«Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Standalone Financial
Statements of MPCON Limited.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of MPCON Limited as of
March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting

records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAT and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence amout the adequacy of the internal
financial control system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend upon on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, acg
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

ately: and_fairly reflect the
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(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due 10
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also. projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting fo future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
{hat the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issues by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Deepak Goyal and Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 006749C

Partner
M.No. : 075634

UDIN: 9 up3S3y BeH Ben) 3644

Place :Bhopal
Date : 14" August 2024
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MPCON LIMITED
CIN : U74140MP1979G01001502
Regd. Office: GF - 35, Rajeev Gandhi Bhawan - 2, Shyamia Hills, Bhopal, M.P. - 462 002 (IN)

BALANCE SHEET
As at 31st March 2024
(Amount in lacs)
Particulars Note No. | As at 315t March 2024 | As at 315t March 2023
ASSETS
1. Non - Current Assets
a. Property, Plant and Equipment 1 10.76 13.10
b. Investment property 2 . «
¢ Other Intangible Assets 3 0.00 0.14
d. Financial Assets
I. Trade Recaivables a4 626.63 734.06
li. Others(BANK DEPOSITS>12 MONTHS 5 764.58 140.00
€. Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 18 118 -
f. Cther Non - Curfent Assets 7 - -
1,403.14 887.29
2, Current Assets
3, Financial Assets
i. Investments 8 .
il, Trade Receivables 9 8.32 0.13
ii. Cash and cash equivalents 10 1,052.53 719.71
iv. Short Term Deposit & Advances 1 193.16 150.08
v. Others 12 234,40 159.22
c. Current Tax Assets (Net) 13 101.77 12251
d. Other Current Assets 14 12.69 313
1.603.27 1,183.24
TOTAL ASSETS 3,006.41 i,gn.s;
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
a. Equity Share Capital 15 100,00 100.00
b. Other Equity 16 1,448.37 IJCIC‘:“_u_
1,548.37 1,102.4
UABIUITIES
1. Non - Current Uabilities
3. Financial Liabllities
i Trade Payables 2 555.24 553.87
ii. Other Financial Liabilities 17 - -
c. Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 18 - 078
d. Other Non - Current Liabilities 1S - -
555,24 §54.65 |
2. Current Uabilities
a. Financial Liahilities
i. Trade Payables s 20 749.45 84.29
ii. Other Financial Liabilities 21 £8.67 $6.21
b. Other Current Liabilities 23 B4.68 231.3¢
¢ Provisions 24 - 161
d. Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 37 - -
902.80 413.47
[TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3,006.41 2,070.53
As per our report of even date attached
For: Deepak Goyal & Associates FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS \
FRN  006745C [ sHoOPAL | ™)
CA Deepik Goyal \-/' [ASHUTOSH SINGLA) (PRASOON)
PARTNER \ DIN ; 06646775 DIN : 03599426
X ING DI N
aﬂa?&ﬁg“\;‘mk e T333) .. MANAGING DIRECTOR CHAIRMA!

Date : 26.04.2024
Place : Bhopal

f RPCN
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MPCON LIMITED
CIN : U74140MP1979GO0OI001502
Regd. Office: GF - 35, Rajeev Gandhi Bhawan - 2, Shyamla Hills, Bhopal, M.P. - 462 002 (IN)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
for the year ended 31st March 2024

(Amount in lacs)

Particulars Note No; For the Year ended For the Year ended
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Income
Revenue from Operations 25 23,659.19 17,883.45
Other Income 26 47.49 76.21
Total Income . 23,706.69 17,959.65
|Expenses
Employee benefit expenses 27 264.60 225.50
Finance Costs 2R - -
Depreciation and Amortization expenses 29 4.65 423
Other Expenses 30 22.591.38 17,125.50
Total Expenses 22,860.59 17,355.23
Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items and tax 846.10 604.42
Exceptional Items/Prior Period items 32 - (3.20)
Profit / (Loss) before tax 846.10 601.22
Tax Expanse
1. Current Tax 258.47 156.32
2. Deferred Tax 1.95 3.45
Profit / {Loss) far the period from continuing operaticns (A) 589.58 441,45
DISCONTINUING OPERATIONS

Profit / (Loss) for the period from discontinued operations (8) » -

PROFIT / (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD (A + B) 589.58 A41.45 |
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A. | Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 31
a. Acturial Gain / {Loss) {6.24)| 12.65
i, Tax Effect of (i) above (1.74) 3.28
Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax (€) {4.50)) 9.37
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (A +B +C) 585.08 450.83

Earnings per equity share in Rs. (for continuing and discontiny
1. Basic 5,851.00 4,508.00
2. Diluted 5,851,00 4,508.00

As per our report of even date attached

For: Deepak Goyal & Associates FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

FRN 006749C

CA Dee oyal "/ [ASHUTOSH SINGLA) (PRASOON)
PARTNER B 8 / DIN : 06646775 DIN : 03599426
M.No.075634 e MANAGING DIRECTOR CHAIRMAN
UDIN & 2401534 BkHBRTII3L

Date : 26.04.2024
Place : Bhopal
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; MPCON LIMITED
E CIN: U74140MP1979G0I1001502

Regd. Office: GF - 35, Rajeev Gandhi Bhawan - 2, Shyamla Hills, Bhopal, M.P. - 462 002 (IN)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 31st March 2024
A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
i. Current Reporting Period 01/04/2023 to 31/03/2024

(Amount in lacs)
X E Restated balance at 5
Balance at the beginning o"n‘;:‘:::q""v the O‘m‘e; n equity Balance at the
of the current reporting period as on beginning of the ,s e end of the
Capital due to pital during the 5
01/04/2023 rior period errors | CUTTeNt reporting s e current reporting
P e period Y period
10002 0.00 100.00 0.00 100.00
(2) Previous reporting period
Restated balance at
nges i
Balance at the beginning dung:‘s:::quky the e Sh:r::qu ty Balance at the
of the previous reporting period as on Capital due to beginning of the copitl durtng the end o.l the
01/04/2022 clor vaid levrors previous reporting o previous
¥ PA period P ¥ reporting period
100.00 0.00 100.00 0.00 100.00

As per our report of even date attached

For: Deepak Goyal & Associates FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

FRN 749C

Q\ .&

CA De \ )

PAI R BHOPAL |7 {ASHUTOSH SINGLA)
M.No.075634 YRy DIN : 06646775
UDIN' 24p35634BKHRBT3731 MANAGING DIRECTOR

Date : 26.04.2024
Place : Bhopal
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MPCON LIMITED

CIN : U74140MP1979G0I001502
Regd. Office: GF - 35, Rajeev Gandhl Bhawan - 2, Shyamia Hills, Bhopal, M.P. - 462 002 (IN)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31st March 2024

Particul For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2024 31ct March 2023
Profit bafore income Tax from
Continuing Operations 846.10 80122
Qther Comprehenilve Income (6.24) 1265
Drsc Operations
[Profit batore Income Tox inciuding discontinued oper ations 835 85 613168
Adjustments For :
Depreciation and Amortation Expense 465 4323
Profit on Sate of Fixed Assoty
Investng income classified as investing Cash Flows (43.55) (260}
Bad Debts Written off B -
Interest on Preference Shares
Fair Value Changes through Profit and Loss
Finance Lease Recievable and Lisbility Changes
Deferred Income
Actuaria| Adustments - -
IQEnﬂr_\‘ Profit before working capital changes 800 96 59388
(Chenge in operaling assets ang Labilities, net of effects from purchase
of controlled entities and sale of subsidiaries
|Decrease / (increase)  Financial Assets 1642 56 157.
Decrease / (Increase) : Current Tox Assets 20.75 —(1—5-7;
Decrease / (Increase] : Other Current Assets 6239 (5. 78
/1 ]+ Financial Gabili 633.53 (14.34]
A ) : Othee Current (146.68) 43.92
i ] : Non current 139.12 (63.67)
|Increase / [Decrease] - Provisions (1.61}) 18.77;
Cash Generated from Operations 692.12 20007
|income Tanes Paid (256.73)) {158 60)
Net Cash inflow / (outflow) from Operating Activities {A) 435.39 6047
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Income from FDRs -
{Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment §2.17) (2.55
5ale of Propesty. Plant & Equi . 0.23%
Net Cash Inflow Z iomﬂow! from lnm Activitles (B) 2.17)! {2.33))
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cividend Paie to Equity Sharsholders 1100.00! {13000}
|oividend Distribution Tax Paid I -
Net Cash inflow / (outfiow) from Financing Activities (C) 1100.00}] mono_#
Net Increase / (Decrease] In Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+8+C) 333.22 408.14
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the year 718.71 31157
Cash and Cash E lents at the end of the [} 1,052.93 71971 |
|Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year
Cash on Hand 0.26 019
Lheaues / Dratts on Hand ¥
Aalances in Current / Savings Accounts with Banks 103162 31473
|Batances in Deposit Accounts 2108 20478
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 1,052.93 71871
Out of (D), cash and cash held by the
entity that are not avallable for use 9 .
Non Cash financing and Investing Activities e -
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Eaplanatory Infermation in Notes
As per our repont of aven date antached
For: Deepak Goyal & Assodates FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

TP A

= (ASHUTOSH SINGLA)
DIN ' DE646T7S
e wasmsmﬁf:mt " qu

Date . 26.04.2024 \
Place : Bhopal >

GING DIAFCTOR
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MPCON LIMITED

CIN : U74140MP1979G0I1001502
Regd. Office: GF - 35, Rajeev Gandhi Bhawan - 2, Shyamia Hills, Bhopal, M.P. - 462 D02 {IN)

Ageing for the year ended 315t March 2024

Teade Recelvable - Non Current Ageing Schudule

for followin ods from due date of P, yment Total
| 5 we. Particulors Lese than & 2 years 23 years Niore than 3 years
months i
" Trace - ed
ood - - 172 B5739)
m Undisputed Trade Recemabies - which Fave
ificant incraase in credit risk {
i) Undisputec Trade Recaivables = cradit
ed
) Drisuted Trade Recevables—~onsidered
W Disputed Trace Receivaties ~ which have
Lgnifcant increase in sred 1 risk
o [Disputed frads Recewabiles —credit i,
- t A Schedale
iods from due date of At
S.No. 12 years 2.3 years Mare than 3 years Total
L Trade -
0 lood 000 0.00 003
l Undisputed Trade Recewadles - which have
gnificant Increass in credit rk
Trade —credit
(i)
d
L wted T s~consdered
w Disputed Trade Recevables = which have
tincresse in cradit rigk
) Trade Keceivables ~ tredit impairad
| Frade Payables a
§.No. [Particulars Outstanding tor follewing petiods fram due date of Total
More than 3
Less than 1 year 2-3 years years
[V SME 12595 - - 12595 |
Gi]  [Others 623.50) 43 65 493.17 1.178.76
W) (D does = MSME
W) 1D d dues - Others
N ing ol
Shares held by promoters at the end of the yer % Change during
the year***
S.No  |Promoter name No. of Shares**
IFC Limvitd ian NIL
1
Total

*Promotet here means aromoter as defined in the Comparnies Act, 2013

** Detads shall be given separately for each Cless of shares

*** pereentage change shall be computed with respect to the number at the begnning of the year or if issued

dunng the yeer for the first time then with respect 10 tne date of Issue *;
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MPCON LIMITED
Read. Office: GF - 35, Rajeev Gandhi Bhawan - 2, Shyamla Hills, Bhopal, M.P. - 462 002 (I}
NOTES FSRMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

A3 at 315t March 2024
Ratios
foe Period foe ; L3
Name of Ratie Formula ended on 31st Mar. | Prriod ended on 3t (Pepdended | L Chane in Ratin (in ) EXPUantion (1f change i
024 Mar. 2034 on "'“ Mar. |5t Mar. 3023 more than 25%)
Currrent Agle
[iar e R 160N 27 w02 80 3 3%
[ras S - Currem Liatulines 2 i 2K E Duc 10 increase in Trade
yables
N - . =
(b) Debr-Exgaty %ﬁ_ A NA NA NA N.A NA
|Ne1 Operating Income NA NA
(6) Debt Service Coverage Kato, NA NA NA N.A N.A
o Total Debt Service A
Net Profin after intersst, 585 08! 0 3% R
146 Renarm an Fguaes Ravwo, tan CHOY | px and preference %
Equity Cepital 1548 37
{€) Inventory turmover rati, Qﬂﬂmm NA NA NA NA
- [Average loventory
21834 19)
Tl bl
) Trile Reven ables tmos e rate Average Accounts R4 of 3 45 26 86 63| Doa to Increase in Turmover
Recenable
Cost of Goods Sold upﬂ_nﬁ
Trace payabler lurnoves fat, - 4038 -
g : Average Accounts NA NA NA
Net Sales NA
th) Net captal lurnover ratia, 23,655.19 1.54857 1528 16.21 6%
o (Capita! Employed
Net Profit NA
(1) Net peait exime 2 sS85 08 23,659 19 ooz 003 2%
Sules
NA
(1) Retwrn on Capital employed, 841.60 1,548 37 084 0.5s 2%
NA
LR e st S84 08 Jo064a1 19 48" UM 1%
Total assets
L
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MPCON LIMITED

CIN : U74140MP1979G0I1001502
Regd. Oifice: GF - 35, Rajeev Gandhi Bhawan - 2, Shyamla Hills, Bhopal, M.P. - 462 002 (IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

As at 31st March 2024
Note No. Particulars As at 315t March 2024 | As at 31st March 2023
PROPERTY PLANT AND EQ! T
(Gross Carrying Value
[Opening Balance
3. Furniture and Fixtures 3462
b. Vehicles 10.25]
lc. Office Equigment 52.20
d. Others 10.18]
107.25
Additions / (Sale] during the period
2. Furniture and Fixtures 0,00/
b. Vehicles 0.00]
c. Office Equipmen 166
d. Others § 051
2.17)
Closing Balance
&. Furniture and Fixtures 3462
b. Vehicles 10.25
c. Office Equipment 53.86
d. Others 10.69
109.42
|Accumulated Depreciation
Opening Balance
&. Furniture and Fixtures 272,23
b. Vehicles 9.88
c. Office Equipment 49.77]
d. Others 7.27!
§4.15
|Depreciation for the period
a. Furniture and Fixtures
b. Vehicles
lc. Office Equipment
Wote L) Séwrs
No.1
Closing of A P
& Furniture and Fixtures
b. Vehicles
c. Office Equipment
d. Others
LEASEHOLD PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
[Gross Carrying Value
[Opening Balance
a. Land 0.00] 0.00]
0.00] 0.00]
Additions / (Sale) during the period
a. Land 0.00 0.00]
0.00 0.00
Closing Balance
la. Land 0.00) 0.00]
0.00 0.00
|Accumulated Depreciation
ing Balance
2. Land 0.00 0.00|
0.00] 0.00
Depreciation for the period
a Land 0.00]
0.00
Closing of
a. Land 0.00
0.00,
Net Carrying Value of P 311'5}
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MPCON LIMITED

CIN : U74140MP1979G0I001502
Regd. Office: GF - 35, Rajeev Gandhi Bhawan - 2, Shyamla Hills, Bhopal, M.P. - 462 002 (IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

As at 315t March 2024
Note No. Particutars As at 31st March 2023 | As at 315t March 2023
INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Gross Carrying Value
[Opening Balance
Additions / (Sale) during the period
Closing Balance
Note .00 0.00)
JAccumulated Depreciation
No.2 [Opening Balance
|Depreciation for the period
Closing Balance of Accumulated Depreciation
0.00, 0.00]
Net Carrying Value 5.00 0.00
Note No. Particulars As at 31st March 2024 | As at 31st March 2023
T ——
(OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Gross Carrying Value
(Opening Balance
a. Computer Software 1.27| 127
127 1.27,
|additions / {salc) during the period
2. Computer Softwara 0.00) 0.00
£.00 0.00
Closing Balance
[a. Computer Software 127, 1.27.
Note 127 1.27]
No.3 |Opening Balance
a. Computer Software 113 0.70
113 0.70)
Amortization for the period
2. Computer Softwaste 0.14 0.42
0.14 D.lg
Closing Bal of A PO
2. Computer Software 127 113
1.27 113
Net Carrying Value 0.00{ 0.14]
Note No. Particulars As at 315t March 2024 | As at 31st March 2023
[INON - CURRENT TRADE RECEIVABLES
2. Secured Considered Good - -
b. Unsecured Considered Good
i, Due over 12 months but less than 36 menths 17
il. Others Trade Receivables more than 36 months 857,89
Note 83960
<. Doubtful
No. 4
|Gross Non - Current Trade Receivables 859.60
Less : Pravision for Bad / Doubtful Debts (Expected Credit Loss) 232.98
23298
INet Non - Current Trade Receivables 626.63|
|
Note No. Particulars As at 31st March 2024 | As at 31st March 2023
Note OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Bank deposits >12 months 764.58] 140.00)
No.5 762.58| 140.00|




MPCON LIMITED

CIN : U74140MP1979G01001502
Regd. Office: GF - 35, Rajeev Gandhi Bhawan - 2, Shyamla Hills, Bhopal, M.P. - 462 002 (IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

As at 31st March 2024

Note No.

Particulars

As at 31st March 2024 | As at 31st March 2023
DEFFERED TAX ASSETS (NET)
a. Deferred Tax Assets on account of
i. Due to depreciation 0,00/ 0.00
it. Others 0.00 0.00
0.00! 0.00
the Deffered tax liabilities on account of
No.6 | pue to depreciation 0.00 0.00
ﬂn. Others 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00. 0.00
Note No. Particulars As at 31st March 2024 | As at 31st March 2023
Note OTHERS NON CURRENT ASSETS
0.00 0.00]
No.7
Note No. Particulars As at 31st March 2024 | As at 31st March 2023
ICURRENT INVESTMENTS
a. Investments in Equity Instruments
b. Investments in Preference Shares
0.00] 0.00
Note [Agsregate amount of Quoted Investments 0.00 0.00
[Market Value of Quoted Investments 0.00| 0.00
No.8
Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments 0.00 0.00
Market Value of Unquoted Investments 0.00! 0.00
Aggregate amount of Impairment in value of investments 0.00 0.00
Note No. Particulars As at 31st March 2024 | As at 31st March 2023
CURRENT TRADE RECEIVABLES
a. Secured Considered Good
0.00 0.00|
b. Unsecured Considered Good
i. Due over 6 months 0.04 0.01
ii. Other Trade Receivables 8.29 0.18
Not 8.32 0.19
Ot€ . boubttul
No.9 0.00 0.00
Gross Current Trade Receivables 8.32 0.18
[
Less : Provision for Bad / Doubtful cteb 0.00 0.00
X 0.00 0.00
Net Current Trade Receivables 8.32 0.19
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MPCON UMITED
CIN : U74140MP1979G0O1001502
Regd. Office: GF - 35, Rajeev Gandhi Bhawan - 2, Shyamila Hills, Bhopal, M.P. - 462 002 ™)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
As at 3ist March 2024

Nore Mo Partistacs A500 300 March 2026 | As ot 33t tarch 2623
T —
[CASM AND CAM| EQUIVALEATS
o Balances with anks 1031 63 31473
1031 &2 31573
4. Chwsiues and Dratrs on Hand 200 [
Y] 000
¢ Cash on Hase ° € 19|
Note ) ©.19)
No, 30 [* Ohers
| Bepanay with matury less than ) manit 0 0o} 220.30|
- Depouts weh matusey more than 1 manhs Sul lesy
than 12 moaths 0 364 78]
 DEpOUIS with MaTurty mare haa 13 months 000 .

v Fixed Deponrs hept ot Secursy Deponits

Nate No Pacticers Az 32 36t March 2024 | Ax 31 2158 March 2023

SHONT TEAW DEPCSITE AND ADVANCES

4 Sundry Deposds and £0 0y

¢ Secured, conuadered good ©.00 €00

& Unsecured contdacedt good 13308 o658

= Doubitu! £ 09,
133 04} % 9

Note [P Losm to teistes partias

NO. 13 | Guiver Avances

| Secures, conudeced good

# Umecured, eorydevec good
W Doustha

n—uul Particulars A at 3101 March 2024 | A 91 319t March 2023
[OTHEN CURRENT ASSETS

3 Advances 10 MPCON FINeSTAR 000
Note [i wmerest Atcrued on Deposits 227

0.00)

2685
Ne. 12 [¢ meomn Tax Ketund Recomabie mul uui
33 40 159 12

Note Mo Pacticulan At B Mk 2024 | As o 3108 Mansh 2023
lomm TAX ASSLTS
s Advance T 0.00]
Note |* Tun Deducted ot Source
e MAT Crecnt Entiderisat
No- 13 |hes: provision for Tan
12251
Note B | Paniculars A3 9 U0t March 2004 | As ot 315t Mareh 2623
RS CORRUNT ASSETS.
2 Capust Advancen 15 o
. 0 000
b Advances Other than Capital Ravances
| Sacurity Deposits o ool ©
. Advance tc related pirtes ©.00) o
. Other Advances
1 Prepaid expenses 0.00] .04)
Note 2 Leave Encashement Excoss provision EE 1284/
3 GratuhtvEacess peovision 4t
No. 14 3 T
¢ Others
1 Cash Ludge Bulsnce ol G3T 2 n
7 10500 GS1 Reconable 204 0 a|
3 GST mout Vae Crada s 113)
439 1865
3153
Note No. Partieulars At Fhst March 2026 | As ot 3351 March 2023
QuiTy
[Authorized Share C
10,000 (Frewous vesr  20.090) Euity Shares of Ry 1030/ waen 109 cof 109 00|
400 oo} 100 9]
1s3ued share Caplhial
10.000 (Previous yesr - 10,900} Fquity Shares of i 1000/- sach 100.00) 100 00|
180 00| 00|
Note {subscribed Share Caplial
No. 15 [20.000 (Previous year - 10,000) Euy Shaves of Ry 1000/ each 150 29} ]
100, 100,00
[Paid Up Share Capital
JEqurty Share Capatat
10,000 { Previout year - 10,000} Equity Shares of s 10600/- euch 200,00 300
100.00) 36
Balance ot the end ef the reparting peviod 106.00 100.09)




MPCON LIMITED

CIN : U74140MP1979G0I001502
Regd. Office: GF - 35, Rajeev Gandhi Bhawan - 2, Shyamla Hills, Bhopal, M.P. - 462 002 (IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

As at 31st March 2024

Note No, Particulars As at 31st March 2024 | As at 31st March 2023
OTHER EQUITY
Share application money pending aliotment 0.00| 0.00]
Equity component of other Financial Instruments Q.00 0.00
Note [Reserve ond Surplus
No. 16 [Retained Earnings 1435.20) 984.74
General Reserve 6.00 6.00
Dther Comprehensive Income 217 11.67
1448.37 1002.41
St
Note No. 16 (1)
Retained Earnings
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 | As at 31st March 2023
Opening Balance 984.74 736.95
INet Profit for the period 589.58) 44145
Dividends distributed 1o Equity Shareholders [Rs. 1300 per Equity Share) 1200.00} {130.00)
Cividend Distribution Tax Paid 0.00) 0.00
Other Assets Written Off (39.12) {€3.67)
Items of other compr income recognised directly in 2arnings
R of post - loy benefit onlig; net of taces {4.50) 12.65!
Closing Balance 1435.20 984.74/
-4— S
Note No. 16 (il)
General Reserve
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 | As 2t 315t March 2023
(Opening Salance 6.00) 6.00
|Addition / Reduction during the year - -
|Closing Balance 6,00 6.00.
Note No. Particulars As at 31st March 2024 | As at 31st March 2023
[OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Note |a. Deferred income fiom Deposits 0.00} 0.00]
No.17 = “2‘
Note No. Particulars As 3t 31st March 2024 | As at 315t March 2023
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)
a. Deferred Tax Liabilities on account of
i. Due 10 depreciation (0.46) (0.24)
Ii. Others 0.72] 1.02)
N (1.18) 0.78
ne [b. Deferred Tax Assets on account of 0.00 0.00
N0.18 | pue to depreciation 0.00 0.00)
ii. Others 0.00 0.00
12.18) 0.78
Note No. Particulars As at 31st March 2024 | As at 315t March 2023
OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES )
Note |* Deferred Income 0.00 0.00)
b. Rent Received In Advance 0.00 0.00,
No. 19 0.00 0.00
= —I
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MPCON LIMITED
CIN : U74140MP1979G0I1001502
Regd. Office: GF - 35, Rajeev Gandhi Bhawan - 2, Shyamla Hills, Bhopal, M.P. - 462 002 (IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

As at 31st March 2024
Note No, Particulars As at 31st March 2024 | As at 315t March 2023
CURRENT TRADE PAYABLES
a. Micro, Small and Medium enterprises 12585 0.00
Note [b Trade Payasle 598.78 8.93
Due over 6 months but less than 1 Yr. 2473 75.36
No. 20
749.45 84.29
Note No, Particulars As at 31st March 2024 | As at 31st March 2023
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Note |Security Deposits Payable 68.67 96.21
No. 21 68.67 96.21
Note No, Particulars As at 31st March 2024 | As at 31st March 2023
NONCURRENT TRADE PAYABLES
3. Micro, Small and Medium enterprises
Note b. Trade Payable
i. Due over 12 months but iess than 36 months 62.07 87.53
No. 22 |, Gtner Trade Payable 493.17 466.34
§55.24 553.87
Note No. Particulars As at 315t March 2024 | As at 315t March 2023
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
3. Advances Received 27.33 48.64
b. Advance received for other training 34.13 70.99
c. Statutory Dues 0.00! 0.00;
i. Gratuity Payable 0.00 0.00
il. Employer’'s PF Payable 0.75 0.91
ili, Employees PF Payable 0.75 091
Note iv. Employees Income Tax (TDS) Payable 0.28 1.31
No. 23 v. Employees LIC Payable 0.00] 0.00
v. Employees Professional Tax Payable 0.02 0.04
vi. Goods & Service Tax TDS Payaole 10.72 52.27
vii. Other TDS Payable 10.70 56.30
d. Others Dividend Payable 0.00 0.00
84.68| 231.36|
| |
Note No. Particulars | A5 at 315t March 2024 | As at 315t March 2023
= |
SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
| X 161
Note Gratulty 0.00
No. 24 0.00 161
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MPCON LIMITED

CiN : U74140MP1979G0I001502
Regd. Office: GF - 35, Rajeev Gandhi Bhawar - 2, Shyamia Hills, Bhopal, M.P. - 462 002 (IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

As at 31st March 2024

Note No. Particulars As 2t 31st March 2024 | As at 31st March 2023
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
a. Project and Technica! Consultancy 291111 1827.31
0.00j 0.00]
Note |o Manpower Supply Cantracts 1973337 14506.02
No. 25 |c. Skill Development Programme 1013.43 1446.94
d. Qther Operating Revenue 1.29) 3.17]
23659.19 17883 .45
e S
Note No. Particulars As 3t 31st March 2024 | As at 31st March 2023
[OTHER INCOME *
a. Interest income
|, Earned and Accrued on Deposits 4355 24.12
li. Earned and Accrued on IFCI 8.7% RR8 Bonds 0.00] 0.00
lii. Earned and Accrued on Tax Free Bonds 0.00} 0.00
wv. Other Interest on income Tax Refund 385 7.97
47.40, 32.08
b. Other Non - operating income
I, Rent Recevec 0.00]
Note . Main. charged received :8;1
No. 26 | pividend income 000
d. Deferred Income - Land 0.00
je. Deferred Income 0.00
I Lease Rental Recelved 0.00,
g, Maintenance Charges Received 0.00]
", Club House & Power Backup Chatges Received 0.00}
|. Trade Payables written back 0.00)
| Sale of Serap 0.09
47.49
Note No. | Particulars As at 315t March 2024 | As at 315t March 2023
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
3. Salaries and Wages 208,98 185,66/
. Contribution to Provident Fund / ESIC 10.87| 1350
c. Group Mediclaim / Insurance / Expenses 3.68 4.45
d. Staff welfare Expenses 7.49 9.20|
NatR 1 sty 2.08 23
N0. 27 |¢ | oave encashment 9.88 (©71)
|e. Conveyance , &N ! 1243 .72
h. interest & Service Cost on Defined Benefit O g2 936
B )
Note No. Particulars As at 315t March 2024 | As at 31st March 2023
FINANCE COST
Note |a. Other Interest Costs 0.00] 0.00|
No. 28 0.00] .00}
| |
Note No. Particulars As at 31st March 2024 | As at 31st March 2023
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION
3. Depreciation on Tangible Assets
\. Property, Plant and Equipment 4.50
b. Amortization on Intangible Assets 0.14
Not 4,65/
4 Lmrmm
No. 29 a. Impairment of Land 0.00,
4.65]
I




MPCON LIMITED

CIN : U74140MP1979G01001502
Regd. Office: GF - 35, Rajeev Gandhi Bhawan - 2, Shyamla Hills, Bhopal, M.P. - 462 002 (IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

As at 31st March 2024
Note No. Particulars As at 31st March 2024 | As at 31st March 2023
OTHER EXPENSES
a. Rent 14.83 15.29
b. Repairs, Maintenance and Consumables 5.97 4,68
c. Electricity 231 2.87
d. Travelling & Conveyance 448 5.95
e. Printing & Stationery 4.18 2.95
f. Postage & Telephone 1.55 1.89
|e. Vehicle Upkeep & Running 1.52 1.38}
h. Books, Periodicals & Subscriptions 0.13 0.09
I, Audit Fees
Internal Audit Fees 051 1.10
Statutory Audit Fees 0.58 0.69
Tax Audit Fees 0.18 0.18
). Business Development Expenses 2.58 2.64,
k. Legal & Professional Expenses 236 1.04
Note |i. Advertisement 0.28 1.59
No. 30 |m. Bank Charges 0.20 0.77
n. Board Meeting Expenses 0.11 0.06
0. Director Sitting Fees 0.26 0.15)
p. General Expenses 2.87 2.18
q. Skill Development Programme Expenses 879.65 1146.74
r. Manpower Supply Contacts Expenses 19048.72 14117.88
s. Consultancy Expenses
i. Project Technical and Professional Fees 2529.03 1602.14
0.00 0.00{
t. Bad Debts written off 0.00 63.02!
u. Provision for Doubtful Debts 82.98 150.00
v. Loss on sale of assets 0.00 0.18r
w.CSR Expenses 6.05 0.00
x. Professional Tax 0.03 0.00
22591.35 17125.50]
|
Note No. Particulars As at 31st March 2024 | As at 31st March 2023
ITEMS ?HAT WILL NOT BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT AND LOSS
a. Acturial Gain / (Loss) (6.24) 12.65
b. R ements of the defined benefit plans 0.00 0.00
Note (6.24) 12.65
NO. 31 | ocs: Tax on Above 0.00 0.00
(6.24) 12.65|
|
Note No. Particulars As at 31st March 2023
IEXCE"IONAL lTEMS;PRIOR PERIOD ITEMS
Note |a Service Tax 0.00
No. 32 |o Goods and Service Tax 3.20
3.20
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MPCON LIMITED

CIN : U74140MP1979G0I1001502
Regd. Office: GF - 35, Rajeev Gandhi Bhawan - 2, Shyamla Hills, Bhopal, M.P. - 462 002 (IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024

Note No. 33 - EARNINGS PER SHARE

(Amount in X in Lacs)

particilars For the Year ended |For the Year ended 31st
31st March 2024 March 2023
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders (in Rs.in lakhs) 585.08 450.81
Weighted Average No. of Equity Shares 10,000 10,000
Face Value per Equity Share (in Rs.) 1,000.00 1,000.00
Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share (in Rs.) 5,850.82 4,508.09
Note No. 34 - AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION
Earticulars For the Yearended |For the Year ended 31st
31st March 2024 March 2023
Audit Fees 0.58 0.69
Tax Audit Fees 0.18 0.18
TOTAL 0.76 0.87
Note No. 35 - TAX EXPENSES
g For the Year ended |For the Year ended 31st
Parsiadan 31st March 2024 March 2023
Current Tax
|z. In respect of Current Year 258.47 156.32
b. In respect of Previous Years = <
258.47 156.32
Deferred Tax
a. In respect of Current Year 1.96 3.46
TOTAL 260.42 159.78
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Regd. Office: GF - 35, Rajeev Gandhi Bhawan - 2, Shyamla Hills, Bhopal, M.P. - 462 002 (IN)

MPCON LIMITED

CIN : U74140MP1979G01001502

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

Note No. 36 - SEGMENT REPORTING

as at 31st March 2024

The Company operates in three reportable business segment namely "Project Consultancy’ comprising of various
projects related consultancy, TEV studies, Feasibility Studies and Valuations etc. and in ' Manpower Supply Contracts'
comprising of providing manpower to government departments and in 'Skill Development Programmes' comprising of
various trainings and skill Development programmes. Hence the segment wise disclosure as required by Ind AS - 108 is

as under:
(Amount in X in Lacs)
Division
Particulars Project & Technical Manpower Supply Skill Development Consclitited Tatal
Consultancy Contracts Programmes

SEGMENT

REVENUE

Sales 2,911.11 18,733.37 1,013.43 23,657.91
Other Income 6.00 40.69 2.09 48.78
iTotal Revenue 2,917.12 19,774.06 1,015.51 23,706.69
SEGMENT
|EXPENSES

Operating

Expenses 2,529.03 19,048.72 879.65 22,457.39
Depreciation

Allocated 0.52 394 0.18 4.65
Operating Profit 387.56 721.40 135.68 1,244.64
Non-Operating

Expenses 123.87 230.57 43.37 397.81
Profit Before Tax 263.69 490.82 92.32 846.83
OTHER

INFORMATION

Segmental

Assets 936.38 1,742.94 327.81 3,007.13
Segmental

Liabilities 936.38 1,742.94 327.81 3,007.13
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MPCON LIMITED
CIN : U74140MP1979G01001502
Regd. Office: GF - 35, Rajeev Gandhi Bhawan - 2, Shyamla Hills, Bhopal, M.P. - 462 002 (IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

Note No. 37- RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
List and Transactions of related partics as per Ind AS-24 “Related Parties
Disclosures™ issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India:

i. Name of the related parties and description of relationship -

A. Enterprises having significant influence over the company

IFCI Limited - Holding Company

MPCON FINeSTAR - Registered Society under MP Societies Registartion Act,1973 founded by MPCON.
Saciety is having 7 members of which 5 Members are the employees of MPCON.
B. Key Managerial Personnel (Directors during the FY 2023-24)

Mr.Prasoon - Chairman ( Appointment w.e f. 30.09.22)

Mr. Ashutosh Singla - Managing Director (Appointment w.e.f. 05.05.2022)

Mr. Ravi Ranjan Mishra ( Appointment w.e.f. 13.10.2022 )

Mr. Arun Kumar Goyal (Appointment w.e.f.06.09.2021)

Mr. Lokesh Krishna (Appointment w.e.f.30.09.2021)

Mr Tarsem Singh ( Appointment w.e.f. 15.06.2022 )

Mr Kundan Jyoti ( Appointment w.e.f. 27.07.2023 )

Mr Shailendra Singh Bora ( Appointment w.e.f. 19.09.2022 )

Mr Anil Kumar Thagle ( Appointment w.e.f. 19.09.2022 )

Mr Shailendra Singh Taragi ( ceased w.e.f 27.07.2023 )

B. Key Managerial Personnel (Directors during the FY 2022-23)
Mr.Prasoon - Chairman ( Appointment w.e.f. 30.09.22)

Mr. Ashutosh Singla - Managing Director (Appointment w.e.f. 05.05.2022)
Mr.Sunil Kumar Bansal - Chairman (Ceased w.e.f. 30.09.22)

Mr. Ravi Ranjan Mishra ( Appointment w.e.f. 13.10.2022 )

Mr. Debashis Gupta - Managing Director (ceased w.e.f 05.05.2022)

Mr. Shriram Dattatray Madhurkar (Ceased w.e.f.22.06.2022)

Mr. Arun Kumar Goyal (Appointment w.e.f.06.09.2021)

Mr. Santhi Chilumuri (Ceased w.e.f. 13.10.2022)

Mr. Rajendra Kumar Raikwar (Ceased w.e.f. 19.09.2022)

Mr. Swaminathan Giridhar (Ceased w.e.f. 19.09.2022)

Mr. Lokesh Krishna (Appointment w.e.f.30.09.2021)

Mr. Vishnu Kumar Gupta (Ceased w.e.f. 22.06.2022)

Mr. Prem Kumar Agrawal (Appointment w.e.f.16.06.2022 Ceased w.e.f.19.09.2022 )
Mr Tarsem Singh ( Appointment w.e.f. 15.06.2022 )

Mr Shailendra Singh Taragi ( Appointment w.e.f. 19.09.2022 )
Mr Shailendra Singh Bora ( Appointment w.e.f. 19.09.2022 )
Mr Anil Kumar Thagle ( Appointment w.e.f. 19.09.2022 )
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NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024

ii. Details of transactions with enterprises having signifcant influence over the company (FY 2022- 23)

(Armount in X in Lacs)

Nature of Transaction

Holding Company
(IFCI Limited)

MPCON FINeSTAR

Total

FINANCE

Dividend Paid to Equity Shareholders

103.64

103.64

INCOME

Manpower Contracts with IFCI Ltd
Received

159.38

159.38

EXPENSES

Remuneration (including benefits) for staff
on deputation

39.04

39.04

JUIABILITIES

ASSETS

OTHER TRANSACTIONS

Advances Repayment (Payment made on
behalf of MPCON FINeSTAR)

0.35

0.35

iii. Details of transactions with enterprises having signifcant influence over the company (FY 2023 - 24)

(Amount in X in Lacs)

Nature of Transaction

Holding Company
(IFCI Limited)

MPCON FINeSTAR

Total

[FINANCE

Dividend Paid to Equity Shareholders

79.72

79.72

[iINncomE

Manpower Contracts with IFCI Ltd
Received

364.41

364.41

JEXPENSES

Remuneration (including benefits) for staff
on deputation

46.57

46.57

|LIABILITIES

ASSETS

OTHER TRANSACTIONS

Advances Repayment (Payment made on
behalf of MPCON FINeSTAR)

1.49
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NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

iv. Details of transactions with KMPs during the year

(Amount in X in Lacs)

For the Year ended

Particulars For the Year ended 31st
31st March 2024 March 2023

i. Managing Director

a. Short term employee benefits 46.57 39.04

b. Other long term employee benefits - -

TOTAL 46.57 39.04

Note No. 38 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

i. Interest Rate Risk Management

Interest rate used to determine fair value of Financial Instruments is 3 Years average MCLR of State Bank of India as at
15.03.2024. The same is subject to review at every financial year close. The company has no borrowings, hence

incremental borrowing rate is not available.

ii. Break up of Financial Instruments carried at fair value through Profit and Loss

(Amount in X in Lacs)

Particulors For the Year ended |For the Year ended 31st
31st March 2024 March 2023
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Trade Receivables 634.95 734.24
Other Financial Assets 234.40 159.22
{FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Trade Payables 1,304.69 638.17
iii. Break up of Financial Instruments carried at amortised costs
(Amount in X in Lacs)
Particulars For the Yearended |For the Year ended 31st
. 31st March 2024 March 2023
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,031.88 534.93
Short Term Deposit & Advances 193.16 150.08
|FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES
Other Financial Liabilities 96.21
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NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024

Note No.39 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Note No. 39 (i) - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(Amount in X in Lacs)
For the Year ended |For the Year ended 31st
Particulars 31st March 2024 March 2023
(A) Claims against Company not-acknowledeged as Debts - -
(B) Bank Guarantees provided - -
(C) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed -
|(i) On Capital
(ii) On Revenue
Account (net of advances) and not provided for -
(D) Export obligations under Licenses - -
(E) The Company has Contingent Liability towars Income Tax is as
e 613.45 613.45
Note No. 39(ii) - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES TOWARDS INCOME TAX
Assessment Year (Amount in X in l.acs)I
2021-22 592.68
2013-14 3.48
2008-10 6.83
2007-08 10.46
Note No. 39 (iii) - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES FOR LEGAL CASES
Litigation Pending Expected financial
Particulars Nature of dues Balore implication

Shri Prahalad

A High Court Jabalpur
Kumar Kanojiya,

Salary

Not Estimated|

Salary,Leave

High Court Jabalpur
Encashment & gratuity . P

R.K.Swarankar

Not Estimated|

US Tiwari, DP o i
' M.P. Industrial Dispute
Sharma and G P Salary Tibiial, Indirs Rs. 952000/-(Approx)
Ahirwar
Employees
Provident Fund Provident Fund High Court Jabalpur Rs.1478984( Approx)
Orgn. Bhopal
Ritu Narula Reinstatement of Job High Court Jabalpur Not Estimated|
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NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

Note No. 40 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Note No. 40 (i) - Defined benefit plans

Brief Description: A general description of the type of Employee Benefits Plans is as follows:

1, Earned Leave (EL) Benefit

Salary - Last drawn qualifying salary

Accrual - 33 days per year

Maximum Accumulation - 33 days

Encashment while in service - 100% of earned leave balance, subject to maximum 33 days per year
Encashment on retirement - Maximum upto 33 days or actual accumulation, whichever is less

2. Gratuity

Salary - Last drawn qualifying salary

Accrual - 15 days salary for each completed year of service
Vesting Period - 5 years of service

Limit - Maximum of INR 20,00,000

Note No. 40(ii) - The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows -

Assumptions as at March 31, 2024

(Amount in X in Lacs)

S. No. Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

. Gratuity

1. Discount rate 7.21% 7.33%
2. Expected return on plan assets 7.01 7.43
2 Annual increase in costs N.A. N.A,
4. Annual increase in salary 8% 8%

Leave Encashment

5. Discount rate 7.21% 7.33%
6. Expected return on plan assets 5.06 5.42
% Annual increase in costs N.A. N.A,
8. Annual increase in salary 8% 8%

Note No. 40 (iii) - The discount rate is based upon the market yield available on Government bonds at the Accounting
date with a term that matches. The salary growth takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factor on long term basis. Expected rate of return on plan assets is based on market expectation, at the beginning of

the year, for return over the entire life of the related obligation.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024

Note No. 41 - Disclosure u/s 22 of MSMED Act, 2006

i. The company has requested information from all its vendors regarding their status of registration in accordance with

the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ("The Act”

). Out of the same

, vendors who did not

send any confirmation have been taken to be non MSME vendors. Further, probability of vendors being under the
MSME Category is negligible as mostly debtors are government departments / entities. Disclosure required under

Section 22 of the MSMED Act, 2006 is as under -

(Amount in X in Lacs)

Particilii For the Year ended |For the Year ended 31st
31st March 2024 March 2023
Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the Act and
remaining unpaid as at year end 1,25,94,507 -

Interest due to suppliers registered under the Act and remaining
unpaid as at year end

Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the Act,
beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest paid other than under Section 16 of the Act to suppliers
registered under the Act, beyond the appointed day during the year
Interest paid under Secticn 16 of the Act to suppliers registered
under the Act, beyond the appointed day during the year
Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under the
MSMED Act, 2006 for payments already made

Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years

Note No. 42 - IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

No impairement of losses recognised by the management.

Note No. 43

The Company has continued to act as a Nodal Agency for the implementation of Various Government Programmes.

Some of the major amounts sanctioned during the Financial Year 2023-

24 are as follows -

(Amount in X in Lacs)

SN Name of Sponsor Agency Sanction
1 District Mineral Foundation Trust (DMF)-Damoh 60.00
2 MP State Open School, Bhopal 509.88
3 MP Council of Employment & Training (MPCET) 172.98
4 Madhya Pradesh Special and Residential Academic Society (MPSARAS) 8.21
5 MP Council of Science & Technology e | 115.79
6 District Mineral Foundation Trust (DMF)-Katni 36.28
7 Directorate of Public Instruction (& 6,354.65
8 District Education Officer M.P. a( B 5,447.85
9 Panchayati Raj, M.P. 2l 375.55
10 M.P. Board of Secondary Education, Bhopal e 1,829.95
TOTAL 1 ZE&* ! 14,911.14
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NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

Note No. 44 - DUES TO SMALL SCALE INDUSTRIAL UNDERTAKINGS
Dues payable to Small Scale Industrial Undertakings as defined under Industries (Development & Regulation) Act,
1951 has been paid within 45 days as per section 438B(h).

Note No. 45 - DEFERRED TAX ASSETS / LIABILITIES
(Amount in X in Lacs)

Particulars As at 31st March 2024 FOrthe Yesrancel 1am
March 2023
Deferred Tax (Assets) / Liabilities
Opening Balance Deferred Tax Liabilities 0.78 -2.67
Net Additions -1.96 3.456
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Asset) (1.17) 0.78

NoteNo 46 : DIVIDEND
The company has declared & paid Interim Dividend of Rs 1,00,00,000 for the financial year 2023-24

NoteNo 47 : INCOME RECOGNITION IN MANPOWER SUPPLY ASSIGNMENTS
In case of Manpower supply assignments invoices are raised after receipt of certificate/confirmation from the departme
Income is also treated in the relavant period when department treat the expenses.

Note No. 48 - CONFIRMATIONS
Balances of Current Trade Receivables and Current Trade Payables are confirmed by majority of parties.

Note No. 49

Previous period figures have been regrouped / rearranged / reclassified, wherever necessary, to make them
comparable to the current year’s presentation.

Note No. 50
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the Financial Statement.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

Note No. 51 - APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements of the company for the year ended March 31, 2024 were a
Directors on 26.04.2024

pproved for issue by the Board of

As per our report of even date attached
For: Deepak Goyal & Associates
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

FRN 006749C

P 4

cA Decpi G;)yal /roroon/
PARTNER (ASHUTOSH SINGLA)

M.No.075634

(PRASOON)
DIN : 06646775
UDIN ! 214035 (31 BK HABT 3331

DIN : 03599426
MANAGING DIRECTOR CHAIRMAN
Date : 26.04.2024
Place : Bhopal

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CORPORATE AND GENERAL INFORMATION

MPCON Limited (“the Company"), is a professionally managed Technical Consultancy Organization Promoted by Apex
Financial Institutions, PSU Banks and various State Govt. Corporations. Established in 1979, it is the premier
consulting organization in Central India, and has consistently endeavoured to provide quality consulting services and
created a niche market for itself. The key element of MPCON’s progress has been to constantly diversify its portfolio
and add new services with the requisite competence.

The core expertise of the company lies in executing project consultancy assignments and training & capacity building
in the field of livelihoods promotion. MPCON promotes entrepreneurship in the state of M.P. & Chhattisgarh and
provides need based consultancy services and allied activities.

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

11 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 have been prepared by the Company
in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) prescribed under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016, as amended from time to time, in this regard.

Further, the financial statements comply in all material aspects with the Indian Accounting
Standards (IndAS) including the rules notified under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 (the Act).

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented in
these financial statements.

12 FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency. All amounts have been denominated in INR and rounded off to the
nearest two decimals, except where otherwise indicated.

13 BASIS OF MEASUREMENT
The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis and under the historical cost
convention, except for the following material items:
* Financial assets at FVTOCI that is measured at fair value
 Financial instruments at FVTPL that is measured at fair value
* Net defined benefit (asset) / liability - fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit
obligation
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14 USE OF JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amount of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Although, such
estimates and assumptions are made on a reasonable and prudent basis taking into account all
available information, actual results could differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision effects only that period or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future years.

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND INVESTMENT PROPERTY

1.5.1 Recognition and measurement

Property, Plant and Equipment is initially measured at cost of acquisition/construction including any
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be

capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Property, plant and equipment held for use or for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The cost includes
non-refundable taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses related to the acquisition and
installation of the respective assets.

Property, Plant and Equipment acquired as replacement of the existing assets are capitalized and its
corresponding replaced assets removed/ retired from active use are derecognized.

If the cost of the replaced part or earlier inspection is not available, the estimated cost of similar new
parts/inspection is used as an indication of what the cost of the existing part/ inspection component
was when the item was acquired or inspection was carried out.

After initial recognition, Property, Plant and Equipment is carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation / amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

In the case of commissioned assets, deposit works/cost - plus contracts where final settlement of
bills with contractors is yet to be affected, capitalization is done on provisional basis subject to
necessary adjustments in the year of final settlement.

Spares parts, standby equipment and servicing equipment which meets the recognition criteria of
Property, Plant and Equipment are capitalized.
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Investment properties include those portions of land and buildings that are held for long-term rental
yields and/or for capital appreciation or for a currently indeterminate use. Investment properties

include properties that are being constructed or developed for future use as investment properties
(if any). )

Investment properties are stated at cost of acquisition / construction less accumulated depreciation.
On disposal of an investment property, the difference between the disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss

On the date of transition to Ind AS, the Company has considered the carrying value of Investment
Properties(if any) as per previous GAAP to be the deemed cost as per Ind AS 101.

Intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost. After initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Government licenses essential for the company’s operations and having a validity of over one year
are initially recognised at cost and carried at cost less accumulated amortisation calculated on the
basis of remaining validity period.

An item of Intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset
are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

1.5.2 Depreciation / Amortization

Depreciation is provided using the Straight Line Method over their estimated useful life as prescribed
under Schedule |l to the Companies Act, 2013 or based on Management assessment of useful life, if
lower than what is prescribed under the schedule (Plant and Machinery — Useful Life of 5 years).
Depreciation is calculated on pro — rata basis, including the month of addition and excluding the
month of sale/disposal. Leasehold improvements are amortised over the underlying lease term on a
straight line basis. Residual value in respect of items of Property, Plant & Equipment and Investment
Property are considered as 5% of the cost. Property, Plant and Equipment costing less than Rs.
S000/- individually are charged to the statement of Profit & Loss Account in the year of their
purchase itself.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Intangible Assets consisting of Computer software with indefinite period utility / user rights and
having a useful life lasting with that of the equipment have been capitalized with the cost of
computer. Software carrying an identifiable utility of at least three years is amortized on a straight
line basis over a period of three years from the date of put into use. Software with limited edition /
period utility i.e. requiring annual revision is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss Account in the
T 4 / 1 \'\ \'\
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year of purchase. Government licenses (if any) are amortized on a straight line basis over a period of
their validity.

Useful Life of Assets : The company estimated useful life of assets as under :-

Sr.No. ASSETS | USEFUL LIFE
1. FURNITURE & FIXTURES | 10

2 VEHICLES 8

3, OFFICE EQUIPMENT 5

4. COMPUTER SOFTWARE 3

5 ELECTRICAL FITTINGS 10

6 OTHERS 3

1.5.3 De - Recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets is de-
recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment or investment property is determined as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

1.5.4 Transition to Ind AS
The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its Property, Plant and
Equipment, Investment Property and Intangible Assets recognised as of the transition date measured
as per the previous GAAP and use such carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date as

per Ind AS 101.

1.6 BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Interest income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation,

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they
are incurred.
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IMPAIRMENT OF NON — FINANCIAL ASSETS

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amount of its non - financial assets (other
than assets held for sale and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that is largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
CGUs. The 'recoverable amount' of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. 'Value in use' is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit and loss. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent
that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Assets are classified as held for sale if it is highly probable that they will be recovered primarily
through sale rather than through continuing use.

Such assets measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell with gains
and losses on re-measurement recognised in profit or loss. Once classified as held for sale, assets are

no longer amortised, depreciated or impaired

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

Investments in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures are carried at cost. The cost comprises
price paid to acquire investment and directly attributable cost. On each reporting date, consequent
upon existence of any external or internal indication to impairment, the impairment loss shall be
recognised as difference between the carrying amount and recoverable amount.

N RIES
Inventories are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. The quantity and valuation

of inventories at the yearend (if any) is taken as physically verified value and certified by the
management.
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1.11  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise Cash in hand, Balances in Bank Account, Remittance in Transit,
Cheques in hand and Demand Deposits, together with other short- -term, highly liquid investments
(original maturity less than 3 months) that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

112 LEASES (IN ACCORDANCE WITH IND AS 116)

The company identifies lease as a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an
asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The company checks
for conditions needed to be fulfilled if the contract is to be classified as lease as under:

i Identified asset.

ii. Lessee obtains substantially all of the economic benefits

iii. Lessee directs the use

1.12.1 The Company as a Lessee

i The company recognizes assets and liabilities for all leases for a term of more than 12
maonths, unless the underlying asset is of low value.

ii. It then recognizes a right of use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased asset
and a lease liability representing its obligations to make lease payments.

jil. The company measures right-of-use assets similarly to other non-financial assets (such as
property, plant and equipment) and lease liabilities similarly to other financial liabilities.

iv. The company recognizes depreciation of the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease
liability.

v, Lease liability = Present value of lease rentals + present value of expected payments at the
end of lease. The lease liability will be amortized using the effective interest rate method.

vi. Lease term = non-cancellable period + renewable period if lessee reasonably certain to
exercise.

vii. Right to use asset = Lease habﬂity + lease payments (advance)-lease incentives to be received
if any initial + initial direct costs + cost of dismantling / restoring etc. The asset will be
depreciated as per Ind AS 16 Property Plant and equipment,

1.12.2 The Company as a Lessor

i. The company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

ii. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards,
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset. For finance leases, the company derecognizes
the underlying asset and recognizes a net investment in the lease,

il A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset. For operating Ieases the company
continues to recognize the underlying asset.

iv. Any selling profit or loss is recognized at lease commencement.
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1.13  PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES RELATED TO CLAIMS, LITIGATION etc.

1.13.1 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are determined based on management estimates required to settle the
obligation at the Balance Sheet date. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions
are discounted. Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as a
finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate.

1.13.2 Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that
arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Information on contingent liability is
disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

1.13.3 Arbitration Awards

Arbitration / Court’s awards along with related interest receivable/payable are, to the extent not
taken into account at the time of initiation, are recognized after it becomes decree. Permanent
Machinery of Arbitration, Government of India, is accounted for on finalization of award by the
appellate authority. Interest to/from in these cases are accounted when the payment is probable
which is the point when matter is considered settled by management.

1.13.4 Liquidated Damages

Liquidated Damages / Compensation for delay in respect of clients/ contractors, if any, are accounted
for when payment is probable which is the point when matter is considered settled by management.

1.14 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS
"1.14.1 Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present
obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present obligation
whose amount cannot be estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, but are
disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote.
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1.14.2 Contingent Assets

Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements where an inflow of economic benefits is
probable. 4

1.15  SHARE CAPITAL AND OTHER EQUITY

Share capital represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued. Any transaction costs
associated with the issuing of shares are deducted from retained earnings, net of any related income
tax benefits.

Other components of equity include Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) arising from actuarial gain
or loss on re-measurement of defined benefit liability and return on plan assets.

Retained earnings include all current and prior period retained profits. All transactions with owners
of the parent are recorded separately within equity. Annual dividend distribution to shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the period in which the dividend is approved by the shareholders. Any
interim dividend paid is recognised on approval by Board of Directors. Dividend payable and
corresponding tax on dividend distribution is recognised directly in equity.

116 INANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
1.16.1 Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

1.16.2 Classifications and Subsequent Measurement

(i) Financial Assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as subsequently measured at either amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income (‘FVTOCI’) or FVTPL, depending on the

contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets and the Company’s business model for
managing the financial assets.
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(ii) Business Model Assessment

The Company makes an objective assessment of the business model in which an asset is held at a
portfolio level, because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is
provided to management. The information considered includes:

* The stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice.
In particular, whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest revenue,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of the liabilities that are funding those assets or realising cash flows through the sale of the
assets;

* The frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its
expectations about future sales activity. However, information about sales activity is not considered
in isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of how the Company's stated objective for
managing the financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are realized,;

* The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within
that business model) and how those risks are managed

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period
the Cormpany changes its business model for managing financial assets.

1.16.3 Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purpose of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the
credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and
for other basic lending risks and costs, as well as profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company applies judgement and considers all the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes
assessing whether the financial asset contains any contractual term that could change the timing or
amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making the said
assessment, the Company considers prepayment and extension terms, features that modify
consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of the interest rates).

1.16.4 Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

A Financial Asset is measured at amortised cost only if both of the following conditions are met:

« It is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows.

* The contractual terms of the financial asset represent contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest.

Subsequently, these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method
less any impairment losses. /’u\ )
) ;
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/
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1.16.5 Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (‘FvTOCYK)

A Financial Asset is measured at FVTOC! only if both of the following conditions are met:

* Itis held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets,

* The contractual terms of the financial asset represent contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest.

Subsequently, these are measured at fair value and changes therein, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Impairment losses on said financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and do not reduce the carrying amount of the financial asset in the balance
sheet.

1.16.6 Financial assets at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

Any financial instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or
as FVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

Subsequently, these are measured at fair value and changes therein, are recognised in profit and loss
account.

1.16.7 Investment in equity instruments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 (i.e. other than equity investments in subsidiaries /
associates / joint ventures) are measured at FVTPL.

Subsequently, these are measured at fair value and changes therein, are recognised in profit and loss
account. However, on initial recognition of an equity instrument that is not held for trading, the
Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value in OCI. This election is
made on an investment by investment basis.

1.16.8 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss or amortised cost, as appropriate and is accordingly accounted for.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company is recognised at the proceeds
received, net of directly attributable transaction %ﬂ»
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1.16.9 Measurement Basis
(i) Amortised cost

Amortised cost is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the EIR
method of discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR
and, for financial assets, adjusted for any loss allowance.

(ii) Fair Valuation

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its
absence, the most advantageous market to which the Company has access at that date. The fair
value of a liability reflects it non — performance risk.

When one is available, the Company measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price
in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or
liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing
basis. If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Company uses valuation techniques
that maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs.
The valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into
account in pricing a transaction."”

1.16.10 De-recognition/Modification of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
(A) De-recognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
(i) Financial assets

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily de-recognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

* The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

¢ The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
3 pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the
transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. The Company also
recognise a liability for the consideration received attributable } the \C9mpany‘s continuing
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involvement on the asset transferred. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

On de-recognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or
the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset de-recognised) and the sum of (i) the
consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii) any
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in OC is recognised in profit or loss,

(i)  Financial liabilities

The Company de-recognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expired.

(8) Modifications of financial assets and financial liabilities
(i) Financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Company evaluates whether the cash flows of the
modified asset are substantially different, If the cash flows are substantially different, then the
modification results in de-recognition of the original financial asset and new financial asset is
recognised at fair value.

If the cash flows of the modified asset are not substantially different, then the modification does not
result in de-recognition of the financial asset. In this case, the Company recalculates the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset and recognises the amount arising from adjusting the gross
carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. Any costs or fees incurred adjust the
carrying amount of the modified financial asset and are amortised over the remaining term of the
meodified financial asset by recomputing the EIR rate on the instrument.

if such a modification is carried out because of financial difficulties of the borrower, then the gain or
loss is presented together with impairment losses. In other cases, it is presented as interest income.

(ii) Financial liabilities

The Company de-recognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in
profit or loss.

If the modification is not accounted as derecognition, then the amortised cost of the liability is
recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original EIR and the resulting gainor loss is
recognised in profit or loss. Any costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the modified
financial liability and are amortised over the remaining term of the modified financial liability by
recomputing the EIR rate on the instrument." ;
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1.16.11 Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance

sheet when the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there

is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
1.16.12 impairment of Financial Assets

The Company recognises impairment allowances for ECL on all the financial assets that are not
measured at FVTPL. No impairment loss is recognised on equity investments.

ECL are probability weighted estimate of credit losses. They are measured as follows:

¢ Financial Assets that are not credit impaired — as the present value of all cash shortfalls that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

¢ Financial Assets with significant increase in credit risk but not credit impaired — as the present
value of all cash shortfalls that result from all possible default events over the expected life of the
financial asset.

e Financial Assets that are credit impaired - as the difference between the gross carrying amount
and the present value of estimated cash flows

e Undrawn Loan Commitments — as the present value of the difference between the contractual
cash flows that are due to the Company if the commitment is drawn down and the cash flows that
the Company expects to receive with respect to trade receivables and other financial assets, the
Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets. For financial assets at FVTOCI, the loss allowance is recognised in OCI.

1.16.13 Write-off of Financial Assets

Financial assets are written off (either partially or in full) when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. This is generally the case when the
company determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write — off. This assessment is
carried out at the individual asset level.

However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities under
the group’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate, Any recoveries
made are recognised in profit or loss.

1.17 TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables are classified into Non- current and Current trade receivables and
provisions are made based on estimated recovery.
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1.18  FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

The expenses and income in foreign exchange transactions are accounted for at the rates prevailing
on the date of transactions / at the forward rate, if booked, for such transaction. Assets and liabilities
held in foreign currencies and accrued income and expenditure in foreign currencies are translated
into Indian Rupees at the rates advised by Foreign Exchange Dealers Association of India (FEDALI)
prevailing towards the close of the accounting period. Gains / losses, if any, on valuation of various
assets and liabilities are taken to Statement of Profit & Loss.

1.19  REVENUE RECOGNITION

i. Interest Income from Bank Deposits is recognized on accrual basis on a time proportion basis.

il. Income by way of Fees for Project Consultancy Services is recorded on accrual basis as per
services rendered pursuant to the specific service agreements and in accordance with Ind AS 115
- “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”.

iii. Income by way of Fees for HR & Manpower Supply is recorded on accrual basis as per manpower
provided pursuant to the specific agreements and in accordance with Ind AS 115 - “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers”,

iv. Income by way of Fees for Training Programs is recorded on accrual basis as per number of
students to whom training has been provided pursuant to the specific agreements and in
accordance with Ind AS 115 - “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”.

v. Recovery from bad debts written off is recognised as income on the basis of actual realisation
from customers.

1.20 DI NDS

Dividends are recognised if and only when the same are approved by the shareholders in the general
meeting and consequently paid to the shareholders

1.21 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by the company in exchange for service
rendered by employees. Employee benefits include: short — term employee benefits, post —
employment benefits and other long —term employee benefits.

1.21.1 Short Term Employee Benefits

When an employee has rendered service to the company during an accounting period, the company
recognises the undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for that service as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid
and as an expense. Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve
months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of
such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement
that has accumulated at the reporting date. - e
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'1.21.2 Defined Benefit Plans

i Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit employee scheme in the form of Gratuity. The trustees of the
scheme have entrusted the administration of the related fund to Life Insurance Corporation of India.
Expense for the year is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation of the Company’s year — end
obligation in this regard and the value of year end assets of the scheme. Contribution is deposited
with LIC based on intimation received by the Company.

ii. Provident Fund

The Company pays fixed contribution to Provident Fund. The contributions to the fund for the year
are recognized as expense and are charged to the profit or loss. The obligation of the company is to
make such fixed contributions and to ensure a minimum rate of return to the members as specified
by the Government of India (GOI) from time to time.

iii. Medical Facilities and Mediclaim
The Company has a S eE———— mcdical benefit scheme for employees and their dependants
subject to certain limits for hospitalization and normal medical treatment.

iv. Children Education Allowance
The Company also pays Children Education Allowance to employees for a maximum of two (2)
children till the time they are dependent.

Defined benefit plans are those plans that provide guaranteed benefits to certain categories of
employees, either by way of contractual obligations or through a collective agreement. The company
operates unfunded defined benefit plan. The cost of providing benefits is determined using the
projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each fiscal year end. The
obligation recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position represents the present
value of the defined benefit obligation. -

The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each
plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their
service in the current costs and the fair value of any plan assets, if any is deducted.

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial
valuation using the Projected Accrued Benefit Method (same as Projected Unit Credit Method),
which recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit
entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount
rates used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based
on the market yields on Government securities as at the balance sheet date. When the calculation
results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of
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economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contribution to the plan.

The change in defined benefit plan liability is split into changes arising out of service, interest cost
and re-measurements and the change in defined benefit plan asset is split between interest income
and re-measurements. Changes due to service cost (which is the increase of the present value of the
defined benefit obligation resulting from the employee service in the current period) and net interest
cost / income (which is the change during the period in the defined benefit liability that arises from
the passage of time) is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Re-measurements of net
defined benefit liability / (asset) which comprise of the below are recognized in other comprehensive
income:

¢ Actuarial gains and losses;

* The return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability {asset)

1.21.3 Other Long Term Employee Benefits
Benefits under the Company's Leave Encashment and Leave Fare Concession constitute other long
term employee benefits. The Company’s net obligation in respect of leave encashment is the amount
of future benefit that employees have present value, and the fair value of any related assets is
deducted. The calculation is performed using the projected unit credit method. Any actuarial gains
or losses are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Provision for Leave
Encashment is being made on actuarial valuation basis.

122  INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income Tax expense comprises of current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in
accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961) and deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax
effects of temporary differences between tax base and book base). It is recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity
orin OCI.

1.22.1 Current Tax

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid in respect of taxable income for the year
in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961. Current tax comprises the tax payable on the taxable
income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable in respect of previous years. It is
measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Minimum
Alternative Tax (‘MAT’) under the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 is recognised as current tax
in the statement of profit and loss. Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the company:

a) has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and

b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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1.22.2 Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and based on management’s judgement, are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such
reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be
used. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary
differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if the Company:

a) has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

b} the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority.

1.22.3 Current and Deferred Tax for the year
Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

1.22.4 Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)
The credit available under the Act in respect of MAT paid is recognised as an asset only when and to
the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the
period for which the MAT credit can be carried forward for set —off against the norma! tax liability.
MAT credit recognised as an asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and written down to the
extent the aforesaid convincing evidence no longer exists.

1.23  PRIOR PERIOD ITEMS
Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts for

prior period presented in which the error occurred or if the error occurred before the earliest period
presented, by restating the opening statement of financial position.
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1.24 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is computed using the net profit for the year attributable to the
shareholders and weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed using the net profit for the year attributable to the
shareholders and weighted average number of equity and potential equity shares outstanding during

the year, except where the result would be anti-dilutive.

1.25 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company operates in three reportable business segment namely 'Project Consultancy’
comprising of various projects related consultancy, TEV studies, Feasibility Studies and Valuations
etc. and in 'Manpower outsourcing' comprising of providing manpower both skilled, semi-skilled and
unskilled to government offices and in Training Programmes comprising of providing Entrepreneurial
Trainings and Skill Development programmes.

ALLOCATION OF COMMON COSTS

Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment according to the relative contribution of each
segment to the total common costs.

1.26  CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Cash flow statement is prepared as per indirect method prescribed in the Ind AS 7 — “Statement of
Cash Flows”.
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